### NATIONAL BOARD FOR TECHNICAL EDUCATION



# DIRECTORY OF ACCREDITED PROGRAMMES OFFERED BY POLYTECHNICS, COLLEGES OF AGRICULTURE AND SIMILAR POSTSECONDARY TECHNICAL INSTITUTION IN NIGERIA.

### **EIGHTH EDITION**

**MARCH 1994** 

Plot B, Bida Road, P.M.B. 2239, Kaduna.

# NATIONAL BOARD FOR TECHNICAL EDUCATION



DIRECTORY OF ACCREDITED
PROGRAMMES OFFERED BY POLYTECHNICS,
COLLEGES OF AGRICULTURE AND SIMILAR POSTSECONDARY TECHNICAL INSTITUTIONS IN NIGERIA.



**MARCH 1994** 

Plot B, Bida Road, P.M.B. 2239, Kaduna.

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

Foreword	1
Introduction	
INSTITUTIONS AND THE ACCREDITED/APPROVED PROGRAMMES THEY OFFERED Polytechnics And Other Similar Institutions	
Akanu Ibiam Federal Polytechnic, Unwana	2
Benue Polytechnic, Ugbokolo	3
College of Technology Esa Oke - Osun State	3
The Federal Polytechnic, Ado-Ekiti	4
The Federal Polytechnic, Auchi	4
The Federal Polytechnic, Bauchi	5
The Federal Polytechnic, Bida	6
The Federal Polytechnic, Ede	7
The Federal Polytechnic, Idah	7
The Federal Polytechnic, Ilaro	8
The Federal Polytechnic, Kaura-Namoda	8
The Federal Polytechnic, Mubi	9
The Federal Polytechnic, Nassarawa	9
The Federal Polytechnic, Offa	10
The Federal Polytechnic, Oko	10
Institute of Management and Technology, Enugu	11
Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna	12
Kaduna Polytechnic, Zaria	14
Kano State Polytechnic, Kano	14
Katsina Polytechnic, Katsina	15
Kwara State Polytechnic, Ilorin	16
Lagos State Polytechnic, Isolo	.17
Ogun State Polytechnic, Abeokuta	.18
Ondo State Polytechnic, Owo	.18
Plateau State Polytechnic, Barkin Ladi	.19
Ramat Polytechnic, Maiduguri	
Rivers State Polytechnic, Bori	.20
The Polytechnic, Calabar	.20
The Polytechnic, Ibadan (Main Campus)	.21
The Polytechnic, Ibadan (Eruwa Campus)	.23
The Polytechnic, Ibadan (Saki Campus)	.23
The Polytechnic, (Iree-Osun State)	
The Polytechnic of Kebbi State, Birnin-Kebbi	.24
The Federal Polytechnic Nekede, Owerri	.25

Yaba College of Technology, Yaba	26
Our saviour Institute of Science & Agriculture Tech., Enugu	20
our surious institute of solution at right author room, Entire	21
Monotechnics And Other Institutions	
Akperan Orshi College of Agriculture, Yandev	28
Borno State College of Agriculture, Maiduguri	28
College of Agriculture, Jalingo, Taraba State	
College of Agriculture, Kabba	
College of Agricultrue and Animal Science, Kaduna	
College of Agriculture, Samaru Zaria	
College of Agriculture, Zuru	29
Federal College of Agriculture, Akure	
Federal College of Agriculture, Umudike	
Federal College of Animal Health and Production Technology, Ibadan	30
Federal College of Animal Health and Production Technology, Vom	30
Federal College of Animal Health and Production Technology, Vom Federal College of Fisheries and Marine Technology, Lagos, Federal College of Agriculture, Moore Plantation, Ibadan Federal College of Forestry Technology, Ibadan Federal College of Forestry Technology, Jos	30
Federal College of Agriculture, Moore Plantation, Ibadan	31
Federal College of Forestry Technology, Ibadan	31
Federal College of Forestry Technology, Jos	31
Federal College of Fresh Water Fisheries Technology, New-Bussa	31
Federal College of Fresh Water Fisheries Technology, New-Bussa	31
Michael Okpara College of Agriculture, Umuagwo	32
Niger State College of Agriculture, Mokwa	
Federal College of Chemical & Leather Technology, Zaria	
National Water Resources Institute, Kaduna	
Nigerian Army School of Finance and Administration, Apapa, Lagos	
Petroleum Training Institute, Effurun, Delta State	
Federal Survey School, Oyo	
ACCREDITED PROGRAMMES AND INSTITUTIONS	
RUNNING THEM AS AT MARCH, 1994	
Agriculture and Related Technology Programmes	
Agriculture Engineering Technology	34
Agricultural Management and Extention	
Agriculture Technology (General Agriculture)	35
AnimalHealth and ProductionTechnology	
Crop Production Technology	
Fisheries Technology	
Forestry Technology	
Horticulture & Landscape Technology	
Leather Technology	
Home Economics and Management	
Wild Life Management	37

Wood and Paper Technology	37
Art, Printing and Related Programmes	
Art and Industrial Design	38
Fashion Design and clothing Technology	39
Printing Technology	
Finance and Related Studies Programmes	
Accountancy	39
Banking and Finance	
Financial Studies	40
Insurance	41
<b>Business and Related Studies Programmes</b>	
Business Administration and Management	41
Business Studies	
Bilingual Secretaryship	
Co-operative Studies	
Marketing	42
Pre - ND Business	
Public Administration	43
Purchasing and Supply	44
Secretarial Studies	
Information Technology	
Library Science	45
Mass Communication	45
Engineering Technology Programmes	
Chemical Technology	45
Civil Engineering Technology	45
Electrical\Electronic Engineering Technology	
Foundry Engineering Technology	
Irrigation Engineering Technology	48
Mechanical Engineering Technology	
Metallurgy	
Mining Engineering Technology	49
Petroleum Engineering Technology	49
Environmental Design Programmes	
Architectural Technology	50
Building Technology	50
Cartography	51
Estate Management	51
Land Surveying	51
Photogrametry	52
Town and Reginoal Planning	

Quantity Surve	eying	,			52
Quantity Surve	eying	& Building Technology			53
Hospitality an	d Re	lated Programmes			
Catering and I	Hotel	Management			53
Home Econon	nics a	and Management			53
					53
					54
Science, Comp	outing	g and Related Programme			
Computer Stud	dies .				54
					54
Leather Techn	olog	y			54
					55
					55
					56
Science Labora	atory	Technology (Geology Option	ı)		56
Science Labora	atory	Technology			56
Statistics					58
Textile Techno	ology				59
Appendices					
Tables of Accr Institutions in I	edite Niger	d and Approved Programmes	s in various	s Post	Secondary Technical60
					69
200					69
		7/2			69
					70
	52	Requirements for Each Progr			
Agriculture and	d Rel	lated Technology			70
Art, Printing an	ad Re	elated Programmes			71
					72
Engineering Te	chno	ology Programmes			73
Environmental	Desi	gn Programmes			74
Hospitality and	Rela	ated Programmes			76
_					77
Index of Polyte	chnic	es and Similar Institutions (inc	luding Po	stal A	ddresses)79
		KEV TO AD	DDEVIAT	TONIC	
GCE'O' Level		KEY TO AB	PRE-ND	-	Preliminary National Diploma
		Education Ordinary Level			
ND	-	National Diploma	NBTE	-	National Board for Technical Education
HND WASC	-	Higher National Diploma West African School Certificate	SSSC ND*	<u></u>	Senior Secondary School Certificate Approved run at ND level pending
117100	-	" est raffean school certificate			Accreditation
			HND*	- 1	Approved to run at HND level pending Accreditation

### **FOREWORD**

In this eight edition of the directory, efforts have been made to ensure accurate presentation, as at March 1994; of the list of accredited or approved programmes offered by the Polytechnics, monotechnics and similar tertiary institutions whose diplomates can therefore be awarded the National Diploma (ND) and Higher National Diploma (HND), as the case may be, in accordance with the provision of the Education (National Minimum Standards and Establishment of Institutions) Decree 16 of August 1985.

Since the seventh edition of the directory was issued in March 1993, the nomenclature of some polytechnics have changed with their take-over by the Federal Government. The affected polytechnics and their current nomenclature are as follows:-

Former Nomenclature	Current Nomenclature
1. Auchi Polytechnic, Auchi	The Federal Polytechnic, Auchi
2. Anambra State Polytechnic, Oko	The Federal Polytethnic, Oko
3. The Polytechnic, Nekede-Owerri	The Federal Polytechnic, Nekede-Owerri

The change in the nomenclature of these institutions have not affected the accreditation/approval statuses of the various programmes offered by them.

The directory has continued to be an authoritative source of information to all persons - students, employers, guidance counsellors, registration councils, the NYSC Directorate and other organisations about the programmes run by Nigerian Polytechnics, monotechnics and similar tertiary institutions, their admission requirements, and application procedure.

I congratulate the heads of the institutions listed in this edition of the directory for ensuring that the programmes offered by their institutions met the national minimum academic standards as laid down by the Board. It is also hoped that all programmes listed as approved to run pending accreditation will earn accreditation when they are visited in the fourth semester (second semester of the second year) of the programme in the case of the National Diploma and the second semester of the Pre-ND programme.

DR. A.M. YABANI,

Executive Secretary,

anyglami

National Board for Technical Education,

Kaduna - Nigeria.

March, 1994.

# ACCREDITED PROGRAMMES IN NIGERIAN POLYTECHNICS AND SIMILAR TERTIARY INSTITUTIONS

#### INTRODUCTION

In exercise of the powers confered on her by the Education (National Minimum Standard and Establishment of Institution) Decree 16, of August 1985, the National Board for Technical Education (NBTE)has granted accerditation to the various programmes offered by Nigerian Polytechnics, Colleges of Agriculture and similar tetiary institutions which are listed below. Institutions offering the programmes may award the National Diploma (ND) and Higher National Diploma (HND) as appropriate to diplomates of the programmes with effect from the date the accreditation was granted as indicated against the programme. All programmes granted accreditation will be subject to re-accreditation after five calendar years.

Approval granted to aprogramme pending accreditation is for a period of two years. It is hoped that the affected Institutions will ensure that the programme earn accreditation in the last semester of the second year of running the programmes.

## INSTITUTIONS AND THE ACCRDITED/APPROVED PROGRAMMES OFFERED BY THEM AS AT MARCH 1993.

#### POLYTECHNICS/COLLEGES OF TECHNOLOGY

		Programme	Level	Year Accredited/ Approved
A.	Bus	siness and Related Studies		
	1.	Accountancy*	ND and HND*	1985, 1992
	2.	Business Administration & Management	ND and HND	1985, 1990
	3.	Secretarial Studies	ND and HND	1985, 1989
	4.	Marketing*	HND* only	1992
B.	Eng	gineering Technology		
	5.	Civil Engineering Technology*	ND* only	1992/93
	6.	Electrical/Electronic Engineering Technology	ND only	1985
	7.	Mechanical Engineering Technology*	ND* only	1991
C.	Scie	ence Computing and Related Technology		
	8.	Computrer Studies*	ND* only	1991/92
	9.	Pre-ND Science & Technology	Remedial	1989
	10	Science Laboratory Technology	ND and HND*	1987 and 1991
		HND Options in:		
		<ol> <li>Biochemistry/Microbiology*</li> </ol>		
		12. Biology		
		13. Biochemistry*		
		<ol><li>Biology/Microbiology*</li></ol>		
		15. Chemistry		
		16. Chemistry/Biochemistry*		

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/ Approved
A.	Art, Printing and Related Technology		
	1. Art and Design	ND and HND	1985
	HND Options in:		
	2. Ceramics		
	3. Graphics		
	4. Painting		
	5. Sculpture		
	6. Textiles		
B. I	Business and Related Studies		
	7. Accountancy	ND and HND	1986
	8. Business Administration and Management	ND and HND	1985
	9. Marketing	ND and HND	1985
	10. Pre-ND Business Studies	Remedial	1985
	11. Secretarial Studies	ND only	1985
C.	Engineering Technology		
	12. Electrical/Electronic Engineering Technology	ND only	1991
	13. Mechanical Engineering Technology*	*ND only	1992
D.	Hospitality and Related Technology		
	14. Catering and Hotel Management	ND and HND	1985, 1986
E.	Science and Computer Technology		
	15. pre-ND Science	Remedial	1985
	16. Science Laboratory Technology	ND and HND	1985
	HND Options in:		
	17. Biology/Microbiology		
	18. Chemistry/Biochemistry		
	19. Physics with Electronics		
	20. Statistics	ND only	1987

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
A.	<b>Business and Related Studies</b>		z mith
	1. Banking and Finance	ND and HND *	1992 and 1994
B.	Engineering Technology and Related		
	2. Electrical/Electronic Engineering Technology*	ND* only	1993
C.	<b>Environmental Design Studies</b>		
	3. Architectural Technology	ND* only	1992/94
	4. Estate Management*	ND* only	1992/93
	5. Land Surveying*	ND* only	1993/94
	6. Quantity Surveying and Building Technology	ND* only	1993/94
	7. Town and Regional Planning*	ND* only	1993

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
A.	Agrictulture and Related Technology		
	1. Agricultural Engineering Technology*	ND* only	1990/91
B.	Business and Related Studies		
	2. Accountancy	ND and HND	1985/1987
	3. Business Administration and Management	ND and HND	1985, 1987
	4. Marketing	ND and HND	1985, 1987
	5. Secretarial Studies	ND and HND	1987
C.	Engineering Technology		
	<ol><li>Civil Engineering Technology</li></ol>	ND only	1985
	7. Electrical/Electronic Engineering Technology	ND only	1988
	8. Mechanical Engineering Technology	ND only	1988
	9. Mining Engineering Technology	ND only	1985
D.	<b>Environmental Design Studies</b>		
	10. Building Technology	ND and HND	1987
	11. Land Surveying	ND only	1987
E.	Science and Computer Technology		the second second
	12. Food Technology	ND and HND	1987
	13. Glass/Ceramics Technology*	ND* only	1990
	14. Pre-ND Science and Technology	Remedial	1990
	Science and Computer Technology		
	15. Science laboratory Technology	ND and HND	1985
	HND Options in:		
	16. Biology		
	17. Chemistry/Biochemistry		
	18. Physics with Electronics		

		Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
A.	Art	, Printing and Related Technology		
	1.	Art and Design	ND and HND	1985
		HND Option in:		
		2. Ceramics		1985
		3. Graphics		1987
		4. Painting		1985
		5. Sculpture		1987
		6. Textiles		1985
B.	Bus	siness and Related Studies		
	7.	Accountancy	ND and HND	1985
	8.	Business Administration and Management	ND and HND	1985
	9.	Marketing	HND only	1985

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/ Approved
	10. Secretarial Studies	ND and HND	1987
C.	Engineering Technology		
	11. Civil Engineering Technology		0
	HND Option in:	ND and HND	1985
	12. Structural EngineeringTechnology		
	13. Transportation Engineering Technology		
	14. Water Resources and Public Health Eng. Tec	ch	
	15. Electrical/Electronic EngineeringTechnology	ND only	1985
	16. Mechanical EngineeringTechnology	ND only	1985
D.	Environmental Design Studies		
	17. Estate Management	ND and HND	1985
	18. Land Surveying	ND only	1985
	19. Town and Regional Planning	ND and HND	1987, 1985
	20. Quantity Surveying	ND and HND	1985
	21. Building Technology*	HND* only	1992
E.	Information Technology		
	22. Mass Communication	ND only	1987
F.	Science, Computing and Related Technology		
	23. Pre-ND Science and Technology	Remedial	1985
	24. Rubber and Polymer Technology	ND only	1990

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
A.	Agriculture and Related Technology  1. Agricultural Engineering Technology  HND Option in:  2. Farm Powr and Machinery	ND and HND	1987, 1990
В.	<ol> <li>Business and Related Studies</li> <li>Accountancy</li> <li>Business Administration and Management</li> <li>Secretarial Studies</li> <li>Pre-ND Business Studies</li> </ol>	ND and HND ND and HND ND and HND Remedial	1987 1987 1986 1985
C.	<ol> <li>Engineering Technology</li> <li>Civil Engineering Technology</li> <li>Electrical/Electronic Engineering Tech.         <i>HND Option in</i>:         <ul> <li>Power and Machines</li> </ul> </li> <li>Mechanical Engineering Technology</li> </ol>	ND only ND only	1987 1987/92
D,	Environmental Design Studies  11. Architectural Technology*	ND* only	1992

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
	12. Estate Management	ND and HND	1987
	13. Land Surveying	ND and HND	1987
E.	Hospitality and Related Technology		4
	14. Catering and Hotel Management	ND and HND	1985
F.	Science and Computer Technology		
	15. Food Technology	ND and HND	1985
	16. Pre-ND Science Technology	Remedial	1985
	17. Science Laboratory Technology	ND and HND	1985
	HND Options in:		
	18. Biology/Microbiology		
	19. Chemistry/Biochemistry		
	20. Physics with Electronics		

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
A.	Agricultural and Related Technology		
	1 Agricultural Engineering Technology*  HND Options in:	ND and HND*	1987 and 1993*
	2. Farm Power and Machinery		
	3. Soil and Water Management		
B.	Business and Related Studies		
	4. Accountancy	ND and HND	1985 .
	5. Business Administration and Management	ND and HND	1986 and 1988
	6. Marketing	ND and HND	1985
	7. Secretarial Studies	ND and HND	1986
	8. Pre-ND Business Studies	Remedial	1985
C.	Engineering Technology		N N
	9. Civil Engineering Technology	ND and HND	1989
	HND Options in:	iii	= *************************************
	10. Structural Engineering	1	
	11. Transportation Engineering		
	12. Chemical Engineering	ND and HND*	1986 and 1993*
	13. Electrical/Electronic Engineering	ND and HND	1985
	HND Options in:		16.5
	14. Electronic and Communication Eng. Tech.		
	15. Power and Machines Technology		
	16. Mechanical Engineering Technology	ND only	1985
).	<b>Environmental Design Studies</b>		
	17. Building Technology	ND only	1986
	18. Land Surveying	ND only	1985
	19. Quantity Surveying*	ND and HND*	1986 and 1992*

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation.

TH	THE FEDERAL POLYTECHNIC, BIDA. (CONT.)				
A 14	Programme	Level	Year Accredited Approved		
E.	Hospitality and Related Technology	4-7-			
	20. Catering and Hotel management	ND only	1985		
F.	Science, Computing and Related Technology				
	21. Pre - ND Science & Technology	Pre-ND	1985		
	22. Science Laboratory Technology*	ND and HND*	1985/92		
	HND Options in:-				
	23. Biology*				
	24. Chemistry*				
	25. Statistics*	ND and HND*	1985 and 1992		

TH	THE FEDERAL POLYTECHNIC, EDE. OSUN STATE.				
0	Programme	Level	Year Accredited Approved		
Е.	Business and Related Programmes  1. Business Studies*  2. Financial Studies*  3. Pre-ND Business Studies*	ND*only ND* only Remedial*	1994 1994 1994		

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
A.	Business and Related Studies		
	1. Accountancy	ND and HND	1987
	2. Business Administration and Management	ND and HND	1985, 1991
	3. Marketing	ND and HND	1986, 1992
	4. Pre-ND Business Studies	Remedial	1986, 1988
	<ol><li>Secretarial Studies</li></ol>	ND and HND	1985
B.	Engineering Technology		
	6. Civil Engineering and Technology	ND only	1992
	7. Electrical/Electronic Engineering Technology	ND only	1985
	8. Foundry Engineering Technology*	ND* only	1993
	9. Machanical Engineering Technology	ND* only	1994
	10. Metallurgy	ND and HND	1988, 1991
C.	<b>Environmental Design Studies</b>		
	11. Land Surveying	ND only	1990
D.	Foods, Hospitality and Related Technology		
	12. Catering and Hotel Management	ND and HND	1985

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/ Approved
E.	Science, Computing and Related Technology		
	13. Food Technology	ND and HND	1985
	14. Pre-ND Science & Technology	Remedial	1987
	15. Science laboratory Technology*  HND Option in:	ND and HND*	1991
	16. Chemistry*		
	17. Statistics*	ND* only	1992

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
A.	<b>Business and Related Studies</b>		
	1. Accountancy	ND and HND	1985, 1987
	<ol><li>Business Administration and Management</li></ol>	ND and HND	1985, 1987
	3. Marketing	ND and HND	1985
	4. Secretarial Studies	ND and HND	1985
B.	Enginnering Technology		
	5. Civil Engineering Technology	ND and HND	1985
	HND Option in:		
	<ol><li>Structural Engineering Technology</li></ol>		
	7. Electrical/Electronic Engineering Technology	ND only	1987
	8. Mechanical Engineering Technology*	ND* only	1992
C.	<b>Environmental Design Studies</b>		
	9. Building Technology	ND only	1985
	10. Town and Regional Planning*	ND* only	1992
D.	Science, Computing and Related Technology		+
	11. Science Laboratory Technology	ND and HND	1985
	HND Option in:		
	12. Chemistry		
	13. Food Technology	ND only	1985

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
A.	Business and Related Studies		
	1. Accountancy	NDonly	1985
	2. Business Administration and Management	ND only	1985
	3. Pre- ND Business Studies	Remedial	1985
	4. Secretarial Studies	ND only	1985

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
B.	<b>Environmental Design Studies</b>	42	
	5. Architectural Technology	ND only	1988
	6. Building Technology	ND only	1988
	7. Quantity Surveying	ND and HND*	1988 and 1993
C.	Science, Computing and Related Technology		
	8. Pre-ND Science & Technology	Remedial	1985
	9. Science Laboratory Technology	ND only	1988
	10. Statistics*	ND only*	1993

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
A.	Business and Related Studies		
	1. Accountancy	ND only	1985
	2. Business Administration and Management	ND and HND	1988, 1987
	3. Pre- ND Business Studies	Remedial	1985
B.	Engineering Technology		
	4. Electrical/Electronic Engineering Technology	ND and HND	1985
	HND Option in:-		1986
	<ol><li>Electronic &amp; Communication Eng. Tech.</li></ol>		
	<ol><li>Mechanical Engineering Technology</li></ol>	ND and HND*	1989 and 1993
	HND Option in:-		
	<ol><li>Automobile Engineering Technology</li></ol>		
	8. Production Engineering Technology		
C.	Environmental Design Studies	ND and HND *	1986 and1993
	9. Land Surveying	1 4 4 4 4 4	
D.	Food, Hospitality and Related Technology	ND only	1986
	10. Catering and Hotel management		
E.	Science, Computing and Related Technology	ND and HND*	1987 and 1991
	11. Food Technology*	Remedial	1986
	12. Pre-ND Science & Technology	ND* only	1991
	13. Science Laboratory Technology*		

TH	THE FEDERAL POLYTECHNIC, NASSARAWA, PLATEAU STATE.				
		Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved	
A.	Bu	siness and Related Studies			
	1.	Accountancy	ND and HND	1985 and 1990	
	2.	Business Administration and Management	ND and HND*	1985 and 1992*	
	3.	Pre- ND Business Studies	Remedial	1985	
	4.	Secretarial Studies*	ND and HND*	1985 and 1992*	

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
B.	Engineering Technology		
	<ol><li>Mechanical Engineering Technology*</li></ol>	ND*	1993
C.	<b>Environmental Design Studies</b>		
	6. Architectural Technology	ND only	1988
	7. Estate Management	ND only	1980
	8. Quantity Surveying	ND only	1988
	9. Town and Regional Planning*	ND and HND*	1985 and 1992*
D.	Science Computing and Related Technology	LES DOMESTIC	
	10. Pre-ND Science and Technology*	Remedial*	1989*
	11. Science Laboratory Technology*	ND* only	1993*
	12. Statistics*	ND* only	1993*

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
A.	<b>Business and Related Programmes</b>		
	1. Business Studies*	ND*	1993
	2. Financial Studies*	ND *	1993
	3. Pre-ND Business*	Remedial*	1993
	4. Secretarial Studies*	ND*	1993
B.	Science, Computing and Related		
	5. Computer Studies*	ND*	1993
	6. Pre-ND Science and Technology*	Remedial*	1993

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/ Approved
A.	Business and Related Studies		
	1. Accountancy	ND and HND	1987 and 1990
	2. Banking and Finanace	ND and HND	1987
	3. Business Administration and Management	ND and HND	1987
	4. Marketing	ND and HND	
	<ol><li>Pre-ND Business Studies</li></ol>	Remedial	1987
	6. Secretarial Studies	ND and HND	1987 and 1990
B.	Environmental Design Studies		
	7. Architectual Technology	ND only	1989
	8. Building Technology	ND only	1989
	9. Estate Management	ND only	1990
	10. Quantity Surveying	ND only	1989
	11. Town and Regional Planning	ND only	1988

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation

TH	THE FEDERAL POLYTECHNIC OKO, ANAMBRA STATE (CONT.)			
	Programme	Level	Year Accredited Approved	
C.	Information Technology		Laurence (	
	12. Library Science*	ND and HND*	1991 and 1992	
	13. Mass Communication	ND and HND	1987 and 1990	
D.	Science, Computing and Related Technology			
	14. Pre-ND Science & Technology	Remedial	1987	

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited Approved
A.	Art, Printing and Related Technology		
	1. Art and Design	ND and HND	1985
	HND Options in:		
	2. Ceramics		
	3. Graphics		
	4. Painting		
	5. Sculpture		
	<ol><li>Textile Design</li></ol>		
В.	<b>Business and Related Studies</b>		
	7. Accountancy	ND and HND	1985
	8. Banking and Finance	ND and HND	1985
	<ol><li>Business Administration and Management</li></ol>	ND and HND	1985
	10. Co-operative Studies	ND and HND	1985
	11. Marketing	ND and HND	1985
	12. Insurance	ND and HND	1985
	13. Purchasing and Supply	ND and HND	1985
	14. Pre-ND Business Studies	Remedial	1985
	15. Secretarial Studies*	ND and HND*	1985 and 1994
c.	Engineering Technology		
	16. Chemical Engineering Technology	ND and HND	1985
	17. Civil Engineering Technology*	ND and HND*	1985 and 1992
	HND Options in:		
	18. Structural Engineering Technology*		
	<ol><li>Transportation Engineering Technology*</li></ol>		
	20. Electrical/Electronic Engineering Technology	* ND and HND*	1985 and 1991*
	HND Options in:		W - T
	21. Power/Machines*		A THE RESERVE OF THE
	<ol><li>Electronics/Telecommunication Eng. Tec</li></ol>		1992
-	23. Mechanical Engineering Technology*	ND and HND*	1985 and 1992*
	HND Options in:		
	24 Automotive Engineering Technology*	7	1992
	25. Production Engineering Technology		1992

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
D.	<b>Environmental Design Studies</b>		
	26. Building Technology	ND and HND	1985
	27. Quantity Surveying	HND only	1985
E.	Science and Computing and Related Technology		- 17 Carlot
	28. Computer Studies	ND only	1985
	29. Food Technology	ND and HND	1985
	30. Pre-ND Science and Technology	Remedial	1985
	31. Science Laboratory Technology	ND and HND	1985
	HND Options in:	table and	
	32. Chemistry		
	33. Microbiology		1985
	34. Physics with Electronics		
	35. Statistics	ND and HND	1985
F.	Information Technology		
	36. Mass Communication	ND only	1985

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/ Approved
A.	Agricultural and Related Technology	armen Marie 1	
	<ol> <li>Agricultural Engineering and Machanization</li> </ol>	ND and HND	1985
	2. Irrigation Engineering Technology	ND and HND	1987
B.	Art, Printing and Related Technology		
	<ol><li>Fashion Design and Clothing Technology</li></ol>	ND only	1990
	4. Printing Technology	ND and HND	1985
	5. Textile Technology	ND and HND	1987
C.	Business and Related Studies		active types of a
	6. Accountancy	ND and HND	1985
	<ol><li>Business Administration and Management</li></ol>	ND and HND	1985 and 1987
	8. Marketing	ND and HND	1985 and 1987
	9. Purchasing and Supply	ND and HND	1985 and 1987
	10. Pre-ND Business Studies	Remedial	1985
	11. Secretarial Studies*	ND and HND*	1988 and 1994
D.	Engineering Technology		
	12. Chemical Engineering Technology	ND and HND	1988 and 1991
	13. Civil Engineering Technology	ND and HND	1985
	HND Options in:		
	14. Structural Engineering Technology		
	15. Transportation Engineering Technology		
	16. Water Resources and Pub./Health Eng. Tech.		

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/ Approved
	<ul> <li>17. Electrical/Electronic Engineering Technology</li></ul>	ND and HND	1987
	<ul> <li>19. Power and Machine Technology</li> <li>20. Mechanical Engineering Technology</li> <li>HND Options in:</li> <li>21. Plant Engineering Technology</li> </ul>	ND and HND	1985
	<ul><li>22. Production Engineering Technology</li><li>23. Mining Engineering Technology</li></ul>	ND and HND	1985
E.	<b>Environmental Design Studies</b>		
3	24. Architectural Technology	ND and HND	1985
	25. Building Technology	ND and HND	1985 and 1987
	26. Cartography	ND and HND	1985 and 1987
	27. Estate Management	ND and HND	1985
	28. Land Surveying	ND and HND	1985
	29. Town and Regional Planning	ND and HND	1985
	30 Photogrammetry	ND and HND	1988
	31. Quantity Surveying	ND and HND	1985 and 1987
F.	Hospitality and Related Technology		
	32. Catering and Hotel Management	ND and HND	1985
	33. Nutrition and Dietetics	ND and HND	1985
	34. Tourism	ND and HND	1985
G.	Information Technology		
	35. Mass Communication*	ND* only	1992
H.	Science, Computing and Related Technology		
	36. Computer Studies*	ND* only	1992
	37. Food Technology	ND and HND	1985
	38. Pre-ND Science & Technology	Remedial	1985
	39. Science Laboratory Technology  HND Options in:	ND and HND	1985
	40. Biology/Microbiology		
	41. Chemistry/Biochemistry		
	42. Physics with Electronics		1989
	43. Statistics	ND and HND	1985 and 1991

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending Accreditation

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/ Approved
A.	Business and Related Studies		
	1. Accountancy .	ND only	1992
	2. Business Administration and Management	ND only	1992
	<ol><li>Pre- ND Business Studies</li></ol>	Remedial	1991
	4. Public Administration	ND only	1992
	5. Secretarial Studies	ND only	1992
	6. Banking and Finance*	ND* only	1992
B.	Science, Computing and Related Technology		
	7. Computer Studies*	ND* only	1992
	8. Pre-ND Science and Technology	Remedial	1992
	9 Science Laboratory Technology	ND only	1992
	10. Statistics*	ND* only	1992/93

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
A.	Agriculture and Related Technology		
	1. Agricultural Technology	ND only	1987
	2. Animal Health and Production*	ND* only	1991/92
	3. Forestry Technology	ND only	1987
B.	Art, Printing and Related Technology		
	4. Art and Design	ND and HND	1985
	HND Options in:		
	5. Graphics		
	6. Paintings		
	7. Printing Technology	ND only	1985
C.	<b>Business and Related Studies</b>		
	8. Accountancy	ND and HND*	1985 and 1991*
	9. Banking and Finance	ND only	1992
	10. Business Administration and Management	ND and HND	1985 and 1991
	11. Co-operative Studies - AT RANO	ND only	1992
	12. Pre-ND Business Studies	Remedial	1985
	13. Purchasing and Supply	ND and HND*	1985 and 1991
	14. Marketing	ND and HND	1985
	15. Secretarial Studies	ND only	1990
D.	Engineering and Related Technology	i.	
	16. Electrical/Electronic Engineering	ND only	1991
	17. Mechanical Engineering Technology	ND only	1990

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending Accreditation

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited Approved
E.	<b>Environmental Design Studies</b>		
	18. Architectural Technology	ND and HND	1990
	19. Building Technology	ND only	1990
	20. Quantity Surveying	ND only	1985
F.	Hospitality and Related Programmes		
	21. Catering and Hotel Management*	ND* only	1991
G.	Science, Computing and Related Technology		
	22. Pre-ND Science and Technology	Remedial	1985
	23. Science Laboratory Technology	ND only	1991
	24. Statistics.*	ND* only	1991

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited Approved
A.	Agriculture and Related Technology	ND only	1989
D	1. Agricultural Technology Business and Related Studies	ND omy	1909
В.	2. Accountancy	ND and HND	1987 and 1992
	3. Business Administration and Management	ND and HND	1985 and 1992
	4. Pre- ND Business Studies	Remedial	1 b
	5. Public Administration*	HND* only	1993*
	6. Secretarial Studies	ND and HND	1986 and 1992
C. 1	Engineering Technology		
	7. Electrical/Electronic Engineering Technology*	ND* only	1992
D.	Engineering Technology		
	8. Building Technology	ND only	1988
	9. Quantity Surveying	ND ony	1988
E.	Hospitality and Related Technology		
	10. Catering and Hotel Management	ND only	1989
F. S	Science, Computing and Related Technology		
	11. Pre-ND Science & Technology	Remedial	1987
	12. Statistics	ND only	1988

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending Accreditation

A.	Programme		
A.		Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
-	Agriculture and Related Technology		
	<ol> <li>Agricultural Engineering Technology*</li> </ol>	ND and HND*	1987 and 1991*
	HND Options in:		
	<ol><li>Farm Power and Machinery*</li></ol>		1991
	<ol><li>Soil and Water Management*</li></ol>		1991
В.	Business and Related Studies		1987
	4. Accountancy	ND and HND	1987
	5. Banking and Finance	ND and HND	1985 and 1987
	6. Business Administration and Management	ND and HND	1985
	7. Marketing	ND and HND	1985 and 1987
	8. Pre-ND Business Studies	Remedial	1986,
	9. Purchasing and Supply	ND and HND	1985 and 1987
	10. Secretarial Studies	ND and HND	1985 and 1987
C.	Engineering Technology		
	11. Civil Engineering Technology	ND and HND	1985 and 1992
	HND Option in:		
	12. Structural Engineering Technology		1992
	13. Electrical/Electronic Engineering Technology	ND and HND	1987
	HND Options in:		
	14. Power and Machines Engineering Techn.		
	15. Electronics & Comm. Engineering Techn.		
	16. Mechanical Engineering Technology	ND and HND	1987
	HND Options in:		
	17. Automobile Engineering Technology		
	18. Building Services & Refregeration Eng. Tech.		
	19. Plant Engineering Technology		
	20 Production Engineering Technology		
	21 Metallurgy	ND only	1986
	22. Mining Engineering Technology	ND and HND	1988
D.	Environmental Design Studies		
	23. Architectural Technology	ND and HND	1985 and 1988
	24. Building Technology	ND and HND	1986
	25. Estate management	ND only	1985
	26. Land Surveying	ND and HND*	1985 and 1992*
	27. Quantity Surveying	ND and HND	1985
	28. Town and Regional Planning	ND and HND	1988
E.	Hospitality and Related Programmes		
	29. Catering and Hotel Management	ND and HND	1985
F.	Science, Computing and Related Programmes		2200
	30. Computer Studies	ND and HND	1987 and 1990
	31. Pre-ND Science & Technology	Remedial	1986

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending Accreditation

ted/-

ted/-

Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
32: Science Laboratory Technology HND Options in:	ND and HND	1985
33. Biology/Microbiology		1985
34. Biochemistry		1985
35. Chemistry		1987
36. Physics with Electronics		1987
37. Statistics	ND and HND	1986

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/ Approved
A.	Agriculture and Related Technolog.		
	<ol> <li>Agricultural Engineering &amp; Mechanization</li> </ol>	ND* only	1992
	2. Agricultural Technology	ND and HND	1986
	HND Options in:		
	<ol><li>Agricultural Extension and Management</li></ol>		
	<ol> <li>Animal Production Technology</li> </ol>		
	<ol><li>Crop production and Horticulture</li></ol>		
В.	Art, Printing and Related Technology		
	6. Art and Design*	ND* only	1992
C.	Business and Related Studies		
	7. Accountancy	ND and HND	1986 and 1992
	8. Banking and Finance*	ND only*	1992
	<ol><li>Business Administration and management</li></ol>	ND and HND	1992
	10. Insurance	ND andHND	1986 and 1992
	11. Marketing	ND only	1992
	12. Secretarial Studies	ND and HND	1986 and 1992
D.	Engineering Technology	Part A Part	100
ň.	13. Chemical Engineering Technology*	ND only*	1992
	14. Civil Engineering Technology	ND only	1992
	15. Electrical/ Electronic Engineering Technology	ND only	1992
	16. Mechanical Engineering Technology*	ND only*	1992 *
Ε.	Environmental Design Studies		
	17. Architectural Technology	ND only	1992
	18. Town and Regional Planning	ND only	1992
F.	Hospitality and Related Technology		
	19. Catering and Hotel Management*	ND and HND*	1986 and 1991*
G.	Science, Computing and Related Technology		
	20. Food Technology *	ND *only	1992
	21. Pre-ND Science & Technology	Remedial	1989
	22. Science Laboratory Technology	ND only	1989

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending Accreditation

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
A.	<b>Business and Related Studies</b>		and a south of the
	1. Accountancy *	ND and HND*	1985, 1992
	2. Business Administration and Management	ND and HND	1985
	3. Marketing	ND and HND	1985
	4. Secretarial Studies	ND only	1985
В.	Engineering and Related Technology		
	5. Electrical/Electronic Engineering Tech.*	ND only*	1992
C.	<b>Environmental Design Studies</b>		
	6. Architectural Technology	ND and HND	1985
	7. Town and Regional Planning	ND and HND	1985
D.	Information Technology		
	8. Mass Communication	ND and HND	1985
E.	Science, Computing and Related Technology		
	9. Food Technology	ND only	
	10. Pre-ND Science & Techmology	Remedial	1985
	11. Science Laboratory Technology*	ND and HND*	1985, 1991
	HND Options in:		
	12. Biology*	3	
	13. Biology/Microbiology*		
	14. Chemistry *		
	15. Physics with Electronics*		

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
A.	Agriculture and Related Programmes		
	1. Agricultural Engineering and Mechanization*	ND only*	1991, 1992
В.	Business and Related Studies		
	2. Accountancy	ND and HND	1985, 1987
	3. Business Administration and Management	ND and HND	1985, 1987
	4. Secretarial Studies	ND only	1987
C.	Engineering and Related Programmes		
	5. Electrical/Electronic Engineering Technology	ND only	1992
	6. Civil Engineering Technology	ND only	1992
	7. Mechanical Engineering Technology*	ND *only	1992
D.	<b>Environmental Design Studies</b>		
	8. Architectural Technology	ND and HND	1985
	9. Land Surveying	ND only	1985
	10. Quantity Surveying	ND and HND	1985
	11. Town and Regional Planning	ND and HND	1985
E.	Hospitality and Related Technology		172,507-41,607
	11. Catering and Hotel Management	ND and HND	1985
F.	Science, Computing and Related Technology		
	12. Food Technology	ND only	1985

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation.

	Vear Accredited Approved	Programmes	Prolevalue	Year Accredited/- Approved
A.	Business and R	elated Studies	lated Studies	Susiness and Re
Maricilla	1. Accountan	cy "GNH bas GN	ND only	1986
* 48.94	2. Business A	dministration and Management*	ND and HND*	1986, 1992
1000		siness Studies	Remedial	1985
9614100	4. Secretarial	Studies	ND only	1987
B.	<b>Engineering Tec</b>	chnology	Related Lechnolog	Engineering and
1000	5. Civil Engin	eering Technology	ND only	1985
6	6. Electrical/E	Electronic Engineering	ND only	1987
c.	Environmental	Design Studies	annel Planner	A hora more I
	7. Town and I	Regional Planning		1985
D.	Hospitality and	Related Technology		nato. Nassi Cont
	8. Catering an	d Hotel Management	A 77% T	
	9. Tourism	Sylm (Jrl)	1.44.00.000	d 1985
E.	Science, Compu	ting and Related Technology	ence of Technical	THE Pre-IND Sea
Ž.	10. Pre-ND Sci	ence & Technology	Remedial	1985
Eller S	11. Science Lal	poratory Technology	ND only	cha() C1985

	Programmes	Level	Year Accredited/ Approved
A.	Agricultural and Related Technology	CA THE STATE	1 THE ST
	Agriculture Engineering and Mechanization*  HND Option in:	ND* and HND	1985/1991
	2. Post-Harvest Technology *	HND only*	1990
	3. Agricultural Technology	ND only	1985
B.	Business and Related Studies		
	4. Accountancy	ND only	1986
	5. Business Administration and Management	ND and HND	1985, 1987
	6. Marketing	ND only	1985
	7. Purchasing and Supply	ND only	1985
	8. Pre-ND Business Studies	Remedial	1987
	9. Secretarial Studies	ND only	1987
C.	Engineering Technology		
	10. Civil Engineering Technology	ND only	1985
	11. Electrical/Electronic Engineering Technology	ND only	1987
	12. Irrigation Engineering Technology	ND only	1987
	13. Mechanical Engineering Technology	ND only	1985
D.	<b>Environmental Design Studies</b>		
	14. Architectural Technology	ND only	1990
	15. Building Technology	ND only	1990
	16. Estate Management	ND only	1985

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation

	Programmes	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
	17. Land surveying	ND only	1985
	18. Town and Regional Planning	ND and HND	1985
E.	Hospitality and Related Technology		
	19. Catering and Hotel Management	ND only	1985
	20. Nutrition and Dietetics	ND only	1985
F.	Science, Computing and Related Technology	-	
	21. Pre-ND Science and Technology	Remedial	1989
	22. Science Laboratory Technology	ND only	1985
	23. Statistics	ND only	1985

	Programmes	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
A.	Business and Related Studies		
	1. Accountancy	ND and HND	1991, 1992/93
	2. Banking and Finance*	ND and HND*	1990, 1992
	3. Business Administration and Management	ND and HND	1991/1993
	4. Pre-ND Business	Remedial	1992
	5. Secretarial Studies*	ND and HND*	1990 and 1992*
B.	Engineering Technology		
	6. Civil Engineering Technology*	ND* only	1991/92
	7. Electrical/Electronic Engineering Technology*	ND* only	1991/92
	8. Mechanical Engineering Technology*	ND *only	1991/92
C.	Science, Computing and Related Technology		
	9. Computer Science*	ND only*	1993
	10. Pre-ND Science*	Remedial	1993

	Programmes	Level	Year Accredited/ Approved
A.	Agriculture and Related Technology		
	<ol> <li>Agricultural Engineering Technology</li> </ol>	ND only	1986
	<ol> <li>Wood and Paper Technology         HND Option in:     </li> <li>Wood Technology</li> </ol>	ND and HND	1986
В.	Business and Related Studies		
	4. Accountancy	ND and HND	1985

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation.

	Programmes	Level	Year Accredited/ Approved
	5. Business Administration and Management	ND and HND	1985, 1987
	6. Pre-ND Business Studies	Remedial	1985
	7. Secretarial Studies	ND and HND	1986
C.	Engineering Technology		
	8. Civil Engineering Technology	ND and HND	1985
	HND Options in:		
	9. Structural Engineering		
	10. Transportation Engineering		
	11. Electrical/Electronic Engineering Technology	ND only	1985
	12. Mechanical Engineering Technology	ND and HND	1985
	HND Options in:		
	13. Power and Machine Engineering Technology		
	<ol><li>Production Engineering Technology</li></ol>		
D.	Environmental Design Studies	Land made of the control of the cont	
	15. Architectural Technology	ND and HND	1985
	16. Estate Management	ND and HND	1985
	17. Town and Regional Planning	ND and HND	1985
E.	Information Technology		
	18. Mass Communication	ND only	1985
F.	Science, Computing and Related Technology		
	19. Pre-ND Science and Technology	Remedial	1985
	20. Science Laboratory Technology	ND and HND	1985
	HND Options in:		
	21. Chemistry/Biochemistry		
	22. Microbiology/Biology		
	23. Physics with Electronics		
	24. Statistics	ND and HND	1985

TH	THE POLYTECHNIC, IBADAN - OYO STATE.				
	Programmes	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved		
A.	Art, Printing and Related Technology				
	1. Art and Design	ND and HND*	1986 and 1994*		
	HND Options in:				
	2. Painting *		-		
	3. Sculpture*				
	4. Music Technology*	ND* only	1994		
В.	<b>Business and Related Studies</b>		No.		
	5. Accountancy	ND and HND	1985		
	6. Banking and Finance *	ND and HND	1991		

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation.

	Programmes	Level	Year Accredited/ Approved
	4. Business Administration and Management	ND and HND	1985
	5. Insurance *	ND and HND*	1985 and 1991
	6. Marketing	ND and HND	1985
	7. Purchasing and Supply *	ND and HND*	1985 and 1991
	8. Secretarial Studies	ND and HND	1985
C.	Engineering Technology		
	9. Civil Engineering Technology	ND and HND	1987
	HND Options in:		1987
	10. Structural Engineering Technology		1987
	11. Transportation Engineering Technology		1985
	12. Water Resources & Public Health Eng. Tecl	h.	
	13. Electrical/Electronic Engineering Technology	ND and HND	1985 and 1987
	HND Options in:		
	14. Power and Machines Technology		
	15. Electronics and Telecomm. Eng. Tech.		
	16. Mechanical Engineering Technology*	ND and HND*	1985 and 1992
	HND Option in:		
	17. Production Engineering Technology*		
D.	Environmental Design Studies		
	18. Architectural Technology	ND and HND	1985
	19. Estate Management	ND only	1985
	20. Land Surveying	ND and HND	1985, 1988
	21. Quantity Surveying	ND and HND	1987
	22. Town and Regional Planning	ND and HND	1985 and 1993
E.	Information Technology		
	23. Mass Communication*	ND and HND*	1987 and 1994*
F.	Science, Computing and Related Technology		
	24. Computer Studies	ND and HND	1985
	25. Geology	ND and HND	1985
	26. Pre-ND Science and Technology	Remedial	1985
	27. Science Laboratory Technology	ND and HND	1985
	HND Options in:		
	28. Chemistry		*
	29. Microbiology/Biology		
	30. Physics with Electronics		
	31. Statistics	ND and HND	1985

lited/ed

ed/-

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation.

Progra	immes	Level	Year Accredited/ Approved
A. Art, Printing and Related	Technology		
<ol> <li>Art and Design</li> </ol>		ND only	1991
B. Business and Related Stu	idies		III Ay
2. Marketing		ND only	1991
<ol><li>Purchasing and Supp</li></ol>	oly	ND only	1991
C. Information Technology	5		
4. Mass Communicatio	n	ND only	1991

	Programmes	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
A.	<b>Environmental Design Studies</b>		
	1. Architectural Technology*	ND only*	1991
	2. Estate Management*	ND only*	1991
	3. Quantity Surveying*	ND only*	1991
	4. Town and Regional Planning*	ND only*	1991

	Programmes	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
A.	Business and Related Studies		
	1. Accountancy*	HND* only	1993 /94
	2. Banking and Finance*	HND* only	1993/94
	3. Business Administration and Management*	HND* only	1993
	4. Business Studies	ND only	1991
	5. Financial Studies	ND only	1993
	6. Marketing*	HND only	1993
	7. Purchasing and Supply*	HND* only	1993
	8. Pre - ND Business Studies	Remedial	1993
	9. Secretarial Studies*	ND and HND*	1993
B.	Science, computing and Related Technology		
	10. Computer Studies *	ND *only	1993
	11. Pre - ND Science Technology*	Remedial*	1993
	12. Science Laboratory Technology*	ND * only	1993/94*
	13. Statistics*	ND only*	1992

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation.

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
A.	Agriculture and Related Technology		
	1. Agricultural Engineering and Mechanization	ND and HND	1985
B.	<b>Business and Related Studies</b>		
	2. Accountancy*	ND and HND*	1985, 1992
	3. Banking and Finance*	HND only*	1992
	4. Business Administration and Management*	ND and HND*	1985, 1992
	5. Marketing*	ND and HND*	1985, 1992
	6. Pre-ND Business Studies	Remedial	1985
	7. Purchasing and Supply	ND only	1985
C.	Engineering Technology		
	8. Civil Engineering Technology	ND and HND	1985
	HND Option in:		
	9. Structural Engineering Technology		1991
	10. Electrical/Electronic Engineering Technology*	ND and HND*	1985 and 1992
	HND Options in:		
	11. Power and Machines*		
	12. Electronic and Telecommunications*		
	13 Irrigation Engineering Technology	ND only	1985
	14. Mechanical Engineering Technology *	ND and HND*	1985, 1992
	HND Options in:		
	15. Automobile Engineering Technology		
	16. Production Engineering Technology		
	17. Metallurgy	ND only	1985
D.	<b>Environmental Design Studies</b>	-	
	18. Architectural Technology	ND and HND	1985, 1991
	19. Building Technology	ND and HND	1985, 1988
	20. Estate Management*	ND only*	1992
	21. Land Surveying	ND only	1985
	22. Quantity Surveying	ND and HND	1985, 1988
	23. Town and Regional Planning	ND* only	1992
E.	Science, Computing and Related Technology		
	24. Pre-ND Science and Technology	Remedial	1985
	25. Statistics	ND only	1985

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation.

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/ Approved
A.	Agriculture and Related Technology  1. Agricultural Engineering and Mechanization  HND Options in:  2. Agricultural Mechanization  3. Soil and Water Management	ND and HND	1985
В.	Business and Related Studies		
	<ol> <li>Accountancy</li> <li>Banking and Finance</li> <li>Business Administration and Management</li> <li>Marketing</li> <li>Purchasing and Supply</li> </ol>	ND and HND ND and HND ND and HND ND and HND ND and HND	1985, 1987 1985, 1987 1985 1987 1985
	<ul><li>9. Pre-ND Business Studies</li><li>10. Secretarial Studies*</li></ul>	Remedial ND and HND*	1989 1985, 1991
C.	Engineering Technology 11. Civil Engineering Technology* 12. Electrical/Electronic Eng. Technology 13. Mechanical Engineering Technology*	ND only* ND only ND only*	1991 1985 1992
D.	Environmental Design Studies		
	<ul> <li>14. Architectural Technology</li> <li>15. Building Technology*</li> <li>16. Estate Management</li> <li>17. Land Surveying</li> <li>18. Quantity Surveying*</li> <li>19. Town and Regional Planning</li> </ul>	ND and HND ND and HND* ND and HND ND only ND and HND* ND and HND* ND and HND	1985 1992 1985, 1988 1985 1988 and 1992 1985
E.	Information Technology 20. Library Science	ND and HND	1992
F.	Science, Computing and Related Technology 21. Pre-ND Science and Technology 22. Science Laboratory Technology HND Options in:	Remedial ND and HND	1989 1985
	23. Biology/Microbiology 24. Chemistry	HND*	1991 1991

<sup>\*</sup>Approved to run pending accreditation.

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
A.	Art, Printing and Related Technology	NID I LIND	1005
	1. Art and Design  HND Options in:	ND and HND	1985
	2. Graphics		
	3. Painting	_	
	4. Sculpture		
	5. Textile Design		
	6. Fashion Design and Clothing Technology	ND and HND	1985
	7. Printing Technology	ND and HND	1985
	7. Trinking reciniology	ND and HND	1963
B.	Business and Related Studies		
	8. Accountancy	ND and HND	1985
	9. Business Administration and Management	ND and HND	1985
	10. Secretarial Studies	ND and HND	1985 and 1989
	11. Bilingual Secretaryship	HND* only	1992*
c.	Engineering Technology		
	12. Civil Engineering Technology	ND and HND	1985
	HND Options in:		
	13. Structural Engineering Technology		
	14. Transportation Engineering Technology		
	15. Electrical/Electronic Engineering Technology	ND and HND	1985, 1986
	HND Options in:		
	<ol><li>Electronic and Communication Eng. Tech.</li></ol>		
	17. Power and Machines Technology		
	18. Mechanical Engineering Technology	ND	1985 and 1989
	HND Option in:		
	19. Production Engineering Technology		
D.	<b>Environmental Design Studies</b>		
	20. Architechtectural Technology	ND and HND	1985
	21. Building Technology	ND and HND	1985
	22. Estate Management	ND and HND	1985, 1991
	23. Land Surveying	ND only	1985
	24. Quantity Surveying	ND and HND	1985
	25. Town Planning	ND and HND	1985
₹.	Hospitality and Related Technology		
	26. Catering and Hotel Management*	ND and HND *	1986, 1992/93

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation.

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/ Approved
F.	Science, Computing and Related Technology		
	27. Computer Studies	ND and HND	1992
	28. Food Technology	ND and HND	1987, 1992
	29. Science Laboratory Technology HND Options in:	ND and HND	1985
	<ul><li>30. Chemistry/Biology</li><li>31. Microbiology/Biology</li><li>32. Physics with Electronics</li></ul>	5	
	33. Statistics.	ND and HND	1987
	34. Texitile Technology*	ND only*	1991

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
A.	<b>Business and Related Studies</b>		
	1. Business Studies*	ND only*	1992
	2. Financial Studies*	ND only*	1992
	3. Secretarial Studies*	ND only*	1992
	4. Pre-ND Business*	Remedial*	1992
B.	Information Technology		
	4. Mass Communication*	ND only*	1992
C.	Science, Computing and Related		
	5. Computer Science*	ND only*	1992
	6. Food Technology*	ND only*	1992
	7. Pre-ND Science and Technology*	ND only*	1992
	8. Science Laboratory Technology*	ND only*	1992

<sup>\*</sup>Approved to run pending accreditation.

### MONOTECHNICS-COLLEGES OF AGRICULTURE

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
A.	Agriculture and Related Technology		
	1. Agricultural Technology*	Remedial*	1993
	2. Animal Health and Production Technology*	ND* only	1993
	3. Home Economics and Management	ND* only	1993
B.	Science, Computing and Related Technology		
	4. Pre-ND Science and Technology*	ND* only	1993

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
A.	Agriculture and Related Studies		
	1. Agricultural Technology *	ND *only	1990/91
	2. Animal Health and Production	ND only	1990
B.	Science, Computing and Related Technology		
	3. Pre-ND Science and Technology	Remedial	1991

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/ Approved
A.	Agriculture and Related Technology		
	1. Agricultural Engineering Technology	ND only	1990
	2. Agricultural Extension and Management*	HND only*	1992
	3. Animal Health and Production Technology	ND	1990
	4. Agricultural Technology	ND only	1990
	5. Forestry	ND only	1991
	6. Home Economics*	ND only*	1992
B.	Science, Computing and Related Technology		
	7. Pre-ND Science and Technology	Remedial	1989

COLLEGE OF AGRICULTURE, KAB	IBA.	
Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
A. Agriculture and Related Technolog 1 Horticulture and Landscaping 2. Crop Production*		1991 1993

<sup>\*</sup>Approved to run pending accreditation.

COLLEGE OF AGRICULTURE & ANIMAL SCIENCES, KADUNA.			
	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
A.	Agriculture and Related Technology  1 Animal Health Technology*	HND only*	1990

	COLLEGE OF AGRICULTURE, SAMARU - ZARIA .				
		Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved	
A.	Ag	riculture and Related Technology			
	1.	Agricultural Engineering Technology	ND only	1991	
	2.	Agricultural Extension and Management	HND only	1991	
	3	Agricultural Technology	ND only	1991	
	4.	Pre-ND Science and Technology	Remedial	1991	

COLLEGE OF AGRICULTURE, ZURU.			
Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved	
A. Agriculture and Related Technology 1. Agricultural Technology* 2. Pre-ND Science *	ND* only Remedial*	1991 1991	

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
A.	Agriculture and Related Technology  1. Agricultural Technology  HND Option in:	ND and HND	1992 & 1993
	<ol> <li>Crop Production*</li> <li>Pre-ND Science Technology*</li> </ol>	Remedial*	1993

<sup>\*</sup>Approved to run pending accreditation.

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
Α.	Agriculture and Related Technology	1 Related Technica	
	1. Agricultural Technology  HND Options in:	ND only	1990
	2. Crop Production	HND only	1990
	3. Farm Management/Extension Services	HND only	1990
B.	Science, Computing and Related Technology		
	4. Pre-ND Science and Technology	Remedial	1989

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/ Approved
A.	Agriculture and Related Technology  1. Animal Health and Production Technology *  HND Option in:  2. Animal Health	ND and HND*	1992

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
A.	Agriculture and Related Technology  Animal Health and Production Technology*  HND Option In:  Animal Health Technology*	ND and HND*	1992

FE	FEDERAL COLLEGE OF FISHERIES AND MARINE TECHNOLOGY, LAGOS.		
	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
A.	Agriculture and Related Technology  1. Fisheries Technology	ND and HND	1989 and 1992

<sup>\*</sup>Approved to run pending accreditation.

	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
A.	Agricultural and Related Technology  1. Agricultural Engineering Technology  HND Option in:  2. Farm Power and Machinery	ND and HND*	1991/1992
	3. Crop Production	HND* only	1992

FEDERAL COLLEGE OF FORESTRY TEC	CHNOLOGY, IBADAN.	
Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
A. Agriculture and Related Technology		
1. Forestry Technology	ND only	1991/92
2. Pre-ND Science	Remedial	1991

FE	EDERAL COLLEGE OF FORESTRY TECH	OLOGY, JOS.	AU I
	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
A.	Agriculture and Related Technology		
	1. Forestry Technology	ND only	1991
	2. Pre-ND Science	Remedial	1991

FE	EDERAL COLLEGE OF FRESH WATER F	SHERIES, NEW BUSA.	
	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
A.	Agriculture and Related Technology		
	1. Fisheries Technology*	ND* only	1991
	2. Pre-ND Science and Technology	Remedial	1992

FE	DERAL COLLEGE OF WILD LIFE MANAGE	MENT, NEW BUSSA.	
	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
A.	Agriculture and Related Technology	D. P. J.	1001
	1. Pre-ND Science *	Remedial	1991
	2. Wild Life Management*	ND* only	1991

<sup>\*</sup>Approved to run pending accreditation.

		Programme	Level	Year Accredited/ Approved
A.	Ag	riculture and Related Technology		
	1.	Agricultural Extension and Management *	HND only*	1991/92
	2.	Animal Production	ND and HND	1985
	3.	Crop Production Technology	ND and HND	1985
	4.	Fisheries Technology	ND and HND	1990 and 1992
	5.	Forestry	ND and HND	1985
	6.	Horticulture and Landscape Technology *	HND *only	1991/92
	7.	Pre-ND Science and Technology	Remedial	1991

NI	GER STATE COLLEGE OF AGRICULTURE,	MOKWA	
	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
A.	Agriculture and Related Technology  1. Agricultural Technology*	ND only*	1991/92
	Agricultural Technology     Pre-ND Science Technology*	Remedial*	1990/91

lited/ed

ited/-

ited/d

ted/-

ed/-

92

<sup>\*</sup>Approved to run pending accreditation.

# OTHER MONOTECHNICS

FE	DERAL COLLEGE OF CHEMICAL & LEAT	HER TECHNOLOGY, ZAI	RIA
	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
A.	Science Computing & Related Technology		
	1. Leather Technology	ND* only Remedial*	1993
	2. Pre-ND Science & Technology	Remedial*	1993

FEDERAL SURVEY SCHOOL, OYO.		
Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
A. Environmental Design Studies 1. Land Surveying	ND and HND	1990, 1991/92

N/	NATIONAL WATER RESOURCES INSTITUTE, KADUNA			
	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved	
A.	Engineering Technology			
	1. Civil Engineering	ND only	1991	
	2. Water Resources and Public Health Eng.	HND only	1991	
B.	Science, Computing and Related Technology			
	Pre-ND Science and Technology	Remedial	1991	

NIGERIAN ARMY SCHOOL OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION, APAPA LAGOS		
Programme	Level	Year Accredited/ Approved
A. Business And Related Studies		
1. Accountancy	ND and HND	1988
2. Secretarial Studies.*	ND* only	1992

PETROLEUM TRAINING INSTITUTE, EFFURUN, DELTA STATE.			
3	Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
A.	<b>Business And Related Studies</b>		
	1. Business Studies	ND only	1992
В.	Engineering Technology		#
	2. Welding And Fabrication Engineering Tech.*	ND only*	1992
7	3. Petroleum Engineering Technology	ND only	1993

<sup>\*</sup>Approved to run pending accreditation.

# ACCREDITED PROGRAMMES AND INSTITUTIONS OFFERING THEM AS AT MARCH, 1993.

# AGRICULTURE AND RELATED TECHNOLOGY

	Institutions Offering the Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
1.	College of Agriculture, Jalingo	ND only	1990
2.	College of Agriculture, Samaru Zaria	ND only	1990
3.	The Federal Polytechnic Ado-Ekiti *	ND* only	1991
4.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bauchi HND Option in:	ND and HND	1987
	A. Farm Power and Machinery		1987
5.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bida	ND only	1986
6.	Federal College of Agriculture, Ibadan*	ND and HND*	1991/92
7.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna	ND and HND	1985
8.	Kwara State Polytechnic, Ilorin * HND Options in:	ND and HND*	1987
	<ul><li>A. Farm Power and Machinery</li><li>B. Soil and Water Management</li></ul>		
9.	Lagos State Polytechnic, Isolo	ND only	
10.	Ondo State Polytechnic, Owo*	ND only*	1992
11.	Ramat Polytechnic, Maiduguri*  HND Option in:	ND and HND*	1985
-2-2	A. Post Harvest Technology *		
12.	The Polytechnic, Birnin-Kebbi	ND and HND	1985
13.	The Polytechnic, Calabar	ND only	1986
14.	The Federal Polytechnic, Nekede, Owerri	ND and HND	1985

A(	GRICULTURAL EXTENSION AND MANAGEMENT		
	Institutions Offering the Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
1.	College of Agriculture, Jalingo	HND only	1992
2.	College of Agriculture, Samaru - Zaria	HND only	1991
3.	Federal College of Agriculture, Umudike	HND only	1990
4.	Lagos State Polytechnic, Isolo	HND only	1985
5.	Michael Okpara College of Agriculture Umuagwo *	HND* only	1991

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation.

edited/ved

edited/ved

91/92

edited/ved

edited/ved

dited/ed

	Institutions Offering the Programme	Level	Year Accredited/ Approved
1.	Akpenren Okshi college of Agriculture, Yandev	ND only	1993
2.	Bauchi State Polytechnic, Bauchi	ND only	1989
3.	Borno State College of Agric., Maiduguri*	ND* only	1992, 1993
4.	College of Agriculture, Jalingo	ND only	1990
5.	College of Agriculture, Samaru-Zaria	ND only	1991
6.	College of Agriculture, Zuru*	ND* only	1990
7.	Federal College of Agriculture Akure	ND only	1992
8.	Federal College of Agriculture, Umudike	ND only	1990
9.	Kano State Polytechnic, Kano	ND only	1987
10.	Katsina Polytechnic, Katsina	ND only	1987
11.	Lagos State Polytechnic, Isolo	ND only*	1990
12.	Niger State College of Agriculture, Mokwa*	ND only	1985
13.	Ramat Polytechnic, Maiduguri	ND only	1985

	Institutions Offering the Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
1.	Akperan Okshi College of Agriculture, Yandev.	ND only	1993
1.	Borno State College of Agriculture, Maiduguri	ND only	1990
2.	College of Agriculture, Jalingo*	ND only	1990
3.	Coll. of Agric. & Animal Sciences, Mando Rd. Kad.*  HND Option in:  A. Animal Health*	HND* only	1991
4.	Fed. College of Animal Health & Prod. Tech. Ibadan*	ND and HND*	1992/93
5.	Fed. College of Animal Health & Prod. Tech. Vom*  HND Option in:  A. Animal Health*	ND and HND*	1991
6.	Kano State Polytechnic*	ND only*	1991
7.	Lagos State Polytechnic, Isolo HND Option in: A. Animal Production	HND only	1985
3.	Michael Okpara College of Agric., Umuagwo HND Option in: A. Animal Production	ND and HND	1985

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation.

CROP PRODUCTION TECHNOLOGY				
	Institutions Offering the Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved	
1.	College of Agriculture, Kabba	HND only	1993	
2.	Federal College of Agriculture, Akure	HND only*	1993	
3.	Federal College of Agriculture, Ibadan*	HND only*	1991	
4.	Federal College of Agriculture, Umudike	HND only	1990	
5.	Lagos State Polytechnic, Isolo	HND only	1985	
6.	Michael Okpara College of Agriculture, Umuagwo	ND and HND	1985	

FISHERIES TECHNOLOGY			
.6.	Institutions Offering the Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
1.	Federal College of Fisheries, Victoria Island, Lagos	ND and HND	1991
2.	Fed. College of Fresh Water Fisheries, New-Bussa*	ND* only	1992
3.	Michael Okpara College of Agriculture, Umuagwo	ND and HND	1990 and 1992

FORESTRY TECHNOLOGY				
	Institutions Offering the Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved	
1.	College of Agriculture, Jalingo	ND only	1991	
2.	Federal College of Forestry, Jos	ND only	1991	
3.	Federal College of Forestry Ibadan	ND only	1991	
4.	Kano State Polytechnic	ND only	1990	
5.	Michael Okpara College of Agriculture, Umuagwo	ND and HND	1985	

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation.

н	ORTICULTURE AND LANDSCAPE TECHNOLOGY		
	Institutions Offering the Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
1. 2.	Michael Okpara College of Agriculture, Umuagwo* College of Agriculture, Kabba*	HND only* HND only*	1991 1991

LE	LEATHER TECHNOLOGY				
	Institutions Offering the Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved		
1.	Federal college of Chemical and Leather Technology, Zaria*	ND only*	1993		

Н	HOME ECONOMICS AND MANAGEMENT				
	Institutions Offering the Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved		
1.	College of Agriculture, Jalingo Akperan Orkshin College of Agriculture, Yandev	ND only* ND only*	1992 1993		

W	ILD LIFE MANAGEMENT		
	Institutions Offering the Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
1.	Federal School of Wildlife Management, New-Bussa*	ND only*	1991

WOOD AND PAPER TECHNOLOGY				
	Institutions Offering the Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved	
1.	The Polytechnic, Calabar  HND Option in:  A. Wood Technology	ND and HND	1986 1986	

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation.

# ART, PRINTING AND RELATED TECHNOLOGY

	Institutions Offering the Programme	Level	Year Accredited Approved
1.	The Federal Polytechnic, Auchi.	ND and HND	1985
	HND Options in:		
	A. Ceramics		
	B. Graphics		
	C. Painting		
	D. Sculpture		
_	E. Textile Design		
2.	Benue State Polytechnic, Ugbokolo	ND and HND	1985
	HND Options in:		
	A. Ceramics		
	B. Graphics		
	C. Painting		
	D. Sculpture E. Textile Design		
2		ND and HND	
3.	Institute of Management & Tech. (IMT), Enugu HND Options in:	ND and HND	
	A. Ceramics		
	B. Graphics		
	C. Painting		
	D. Sculpture		
	E. Textile Design		
4.	Kano State Polytechnic, Kano	ND and HND	1985
•	HND Options in:	TID und TITE	1,00
	A. Graphics		
	B. Painting		
5.	Lagos State Polytechnic, Isolo	ND* only	1992
<b>ó</b> .	The Polytechnic, Ibadan (Main Campus)	ND and HND*	1985 and 1994
	HND Options in:		
	A. Painting*		
	B. Sculpture*		
7.	The Polytechnic, Ibadan, Eruwa Campus	ND only	1991
3.	Yaba College of Technology, Yaba	ND and HND	1985
	HND Options in:		
	A. Graphics •		
	B. Painting		
	C. Sculpture		
	D. Textile Design		

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation.

FA	FASHION DESIGN AND CLOTHING TECHNOLOGY		
	Institutions Offering the Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
1. 2.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna Yaba College of Technology, Yaba	ND only ND and HND	1985 1985

PRINTING TECHNOLOGY			
	Institutions Offering the Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
1.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna	ND and HND	1985
2.	Kano State Polytechnic, Kano	ND only	1985
3.	Yaba College of Technology, Yaba	ND and HND	1985

# FINANCE AND RELATED STUDIES

AC	ACCOUNTANCY			
	Institutions Offering the Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved	
1.	The Federal Polytechnic, Oko	ND and HND	1987, 1990	
2.	The Federal Polytechnic, Auchi	ND and HND	1985	
3.	The Benue Polytechnic, Ugbokolo	ND and HND	1986	
4.	The Federal Polytechnic, Ado-Ekiti	ND and HND	1985, 1987	
5.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bauchi	ND and HND	1985	
6.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bida	ND and HND	1986	
7.	The Federal Polytechnic, Idah	ND and HND	1985, 1988	
8.	The Federal Polytechnic, Ilaro	ND and HND	1985, 1987	
9.	The Federal Polytechnic, Kaura-Namoda	ND only	1985	
10.	The Federal Polytechnic, Mubi	ND only	1985	
11.	The Federal Polytechnic, Nassarawa	ND and HND	1985, 1990	
12.	The Akanu Ibiam Federal Polytechnic, Unwana*	ND and HND*	1985/1992	
13.	Institute of Management & Tech. (IMT), Enugu	ND and HND	1985	
14.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna	ND and HND	1985	
15.	Kaduna State Polytechnic, Zaria	ND only	1992	
16.	Kano State Polytechnic, Kano	ND and HND	1985/1991	
17.	Katsina Polytechnic, Katsina	ND and HND*	1987, 1992	
18	Kwara State Polytechnic, Ilorin	ND and HND	1987	
19.	Lagos State Polytechnic, Isolo	ND and HND	1985, 1992	
20.	Nigerian Army School of Finance & Admin., Lagos.	ND and HND	1985, 1992	

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation.

Institutions Offering the Programme	Level	Year Accredited/ Approved
21. Ogun State Polytechnic, Abeokuta*	ND and HND*	1988, 1992
22. Ondo State Polytechnic, Owo	ND and HND	1985, 1992
23. Plateau State Polytechnic, Barkin-Ladi	ND only	1985, 1987
24. Ramat Polytechnic, Maiduguri	ND only	1986
25. Rivers State Polytechnic, Bori*	ND and HND*	1991, 1993
26. The Polytechnic, Birnin-Kebbi*	ND and HND*	1985, 1992
27. The Polytechnic, Calabar	ND and HND	1985
28. The Polytechnic, Ibadan	ND and HND	1985
29. The Polytechnic, Iree*	HND*	1993/94
30. The Federal Polytechnic, Nekede-Owerri	ND and HND	1985, 1987
31. Yaba College of Technology, Yaba	ND and HND	1985

	Institutions Offering the Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
1.	The Federal Polytechnic, Oko , Anambra State.	ND and HND	1987
2.	College of Technology Esa-Oke*	ND and HND*	1994
3.	Institute of Management & Tech., (IMT) Enugu	ND and HND	1985, 1987
4.	Kano State Polytechnic, Kano.	ND only	1991
5.	Kwara State Polytechnic, Ilorin	ND and HND	1985, 1987
6.	Rivers State Polytechnic, Bori *	ND and HND*	1990, 1992
7.	Kaduna State Polytechnic, Zaria	ND only	1992
8.	Lagos State Polytechnic, Isolo*	ND only*	1992
9.	The Federal Polytechnic, Nekede, Owerri	ND and HND	1985, 1987
10.	The Polytechnic, Ibadan*	ND and HND *	1992
11.	The Polytechnic, Iree*	HND only*	1994
12.	The Polytechnic, Birnin Kebbi*	ND and HND*	1992

	Institutions Offering the Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
1.	The Federal Polytechnic Ede, Osun State*	ND* only	1994
2.	The Federal Polytechnic, Offa*	ND* only	1994
3.	The Polytechnic Iree, Osun State*	ND* only	1993

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation.

ted/-

ed/-

INSURANCE			
	Institutions Offering the Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
1. 2. 3.	Institute of Management and Techn. (IMT), Enugu Lagos State Polytechnic, Isolo, Lagos. The Polytechnic, Ibadan.*(Main Campus)	ND and HND ND and HND ND and HND*	1985 1985, 1992 1988, 1991

# **BUSINESS AND RELATED STUDIES**

	Institutions Offering the Programme	Level	Year Accredited/ Approved
1.	The Akanu Ibiam Federal Polytechnic, Unwana	ND and HND	1985, 1990
2.	Benue State Polytechnic, Ugbokolo	ND and HND	1988
3.	Institute of Management and Techn. (IMT), Enugu	ND and HND	1985, 1990
4.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna	ND and HND	1985
5.	Kaduna State Polytechnic, Zaria	ND only	1985, 1987
6.	Kano State Polytechnic, Kano	ND and HND	1985, 1991
7.	Katsina Polytechnic, Katsina	ND and HND	1985, 1992
8.	Kwara State Polytechnic, Ilorin	ND and HND	1985
9.	Lagos State Polytechnic, Isolo	ND and HND	1992
10.	Ogun State Polytechnic, Abeokuta	ND and HND	1985
11.	Plateau State Polytechnic, Barkin Ladi *	ND and HND*	1986, 1992
12.	Ramat Polytechnic, Maiduguri	ND and HND	1985, 1987
13.	Rivers State Polytechnic, Bori	ND and HND	1991, 1992
14.	TheFederal Polytechnic, Ado-Ekiti	ND and HND	1985, 1987
15.	The Federal Polytechnic, Auchi	ND and HND	1985
16.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bauchi	ND and HND	1985
17.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bida	ND and HND	1986, 1988
18.	The Federal Polytechnic, Idah	ND and HND	1985
19.	The Federal Polytechnic, Ilaro	ND and HND	1985,1987
20.	The Federal Polytechnic, Kaura-Namoda	ND only	1985
21.	The Federal Polytechnic, Mubi	ND and HND	1980, 1986
22.	The Federal Polytechnic, Nassarawa *	ND and HND*	1985, 1991
23.	The Federal Polytechnic, Nekede, Owerri	ND and HND	1985
24.	The Federal Polytechnic, Oko, Anambra State	ND and HND	1988
25.	The Polytechnic, Birnin Kebbi, Kebbi State*	ND and HND*	1985, 1992
26.	The Polytechnic, Calabar	ND and HND	1985, 1987
27.	The Polytechnic, Ibadan	ND and HND	1985
28	The Polytechnic Iree - Osun State*	ND* only	1991, 1993
29.	Yaba College of Technology, Yaba	ND and HND	1985

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation.

В	BUSINESS STUDIES		
	Institutions Offering the Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
1.	Petroleum Training Institute, Effurun	ND only	1993
2.	The Federal Polytechnic, Ede, Osun State.	ND *only	1994
3.	The Federal Polytechnic, Offa, Kwara State.	ND *only	1994
4.	The Polytechnic Iree, Osun State	ND only	1991

BILINGUAL SECRETARYSHIP		
Institutions Offering the Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
1. Yaba College of Technology, Yaba*	HND* only	1992/93

C	CO-OPERATIVE STUDIES		
	Institutions Offering the Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
1. 2.	Institute of Management and Techn. (IMT), Enugu Kano State Polytechnic, Rano Campus	ND and HND ND only	1985 1985

	Institutions Offering the Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
1.	The Akanu Ibiam Federal Polytechnic, Unwana*	HND only*	1987
2.	The Federal Polytechnic, Oko, Anambra State	ND and HND	
3.	The Federal Polytechnic, Auchi	HND only	1985
4.	Benue State Polytechnic, Ugbokolo	ND and HND	1985
5.	The Federal Polytechnic, Ado-Ekiti	ND and HND	1985, 1987
6.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bida	ND and HND	1985
7.	The Federal Polytechnic, Idah	ND and HND	1985, 1992
8.	The Federal Polytechnic, Ilaro	ND and HND	1985
9.	Institute of Management and Techn. (IMT), Enugu	ND and HND	1985
10.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna	ND and HND	1985, 1987
11.	Kano State Polytechnic, Kano	ND and HND	1985
12.	Kwara State Polytechnic, Ilorin	ND and HND	1985, 1987
13.	Lagos State Polytechnic, Isolo	ND only	1992
14.	Ogun State Polytechnic, Abeokuta	ND and HND	1985
15.	Ramat Polytechnic, Maiduguri	ND only	1985
16.	The Polytechnic, Birnin Kebbi, Kebbi State*	ND and HND*	1985, 1992

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation.

ed/-

MARKETING (CONT'D.)				
Institutions Offering the Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved		
17. The Polytechnic Ibadan	ND and HND	1985		
18. The Polytechnic, Nekede, Owerri	ND and HND	1987		
19. The Polytechnic, Iree*	HND only*	1993		
20. The Polytechnic Ibadan, (Eruwa Campus)	ND only	1991		

	Institutions Offering the Programme	Level	Year Accredited/ Approved
1.	The Akanu Ibiam Federal Polytechnic, Unwana	Remedial	1987
2.	The Federal Polytechnic Oko, Anambra State	Remedial	1985
3.	The Federal Polytechnic, Auchi Edo State	Remedial	1985
4.	Benue State Polytechnic, Ugbokolo	Remedial	1985
5.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bauchi	Remedial	1985
6.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bida	Remedial	1985
7.	The Federal Polytechnic, Kaura-Namoda	Remedial	1985
8.	The Federal Polytechnic, Mubi	Remedial	1985
9.	The Federal Polytechnic, Nassarawa	Remedial	1985
10.	The Federal Polytechnic, Offa*	Remedial*	1993
11.	Institute of Management and Techn. (IMT), Enugu	Remedial	1985
12.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna.	Remedial	1987
13.	Kaduna State Polytechnic, Zaria.	Remedial	1986
14.	Kano State Polytechnic, Kano	Remedial	1985
15.	Katsina State Polytechnic, Katsina	Remedial	1985
16.	Kwara State Polytechnic, Ilorin	Remedial	1989
17.	Plateau State Polytechnic, Barkin-Ladi	Remedial	1985
18.	The Polytechnic, Iree	Remedial	1993
19.	The Polytechnic, Calabar	Remedial	1985
20.	The Federal Polytechnic Nekede, Owerri	Remedial	1985
21.	The Polytechnic, Birnin-Kebbi, Kebbi State	Remedial	1985
22.	Ramat Polytechnic, Maiduguri	Remedial	1987
23.	Rivers State Polytechnic, Bori	Remedial	1992

Ρl	PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION			
	Institutions Offering the Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved	
1.	Kaduna State Polytechnic, Zaria	ND only	1991	
2.	Katsina State Polytechnic *	HND only*	1993	

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation.

redited/oved

redited/oved

Pι	PURCHASING AND SUPPLY			
	Institutions Offering the Programme	Level	Year Accredited/ Approved	
1.	Institute of Management and Techn. (IMT), Enugu	ND and HND	1985	
2.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna	ND and HND	1985, 1987	
3.	Kano State Polytechnic *	ND and HND*	1985, 1991	
4.	Kwara Polytechnic, Ilorin	ND and HND	1985, 1987	
5.	Ramat Polytechnic, Maiduguri	ND only	1985	
6.	The Polytechnic, Birnin Kebbi	ND only	1985	
7.	The Polytechnic, Ibadan*	ND and HND*	1985	
8.	The Polytechnic, Ibadan, (Eruwa Campus)	ND only	1991	
9.	The Polytechnic, Iree*	HND only*	1993	
10.	The Federal Polytechnic, Nekede, Owerri	ND and HND	1985	

	Institutions Offering the Programme	Level	Year Accredited/ Approved
1.	The Akanu Ibiam Federal Polytechnic, Unwana	ND and HND	1985, 1987
2.	The Federal Polytechnic, Oko, Anambra State	ND and HND	1989
3.	The Federal Polytechnic, Auchi	ND and HND	1987
4.	Benue State Polytechnic, Ugbokolo	ND only	1985
5.	The Federal Polytechnic, Ado-Ekiti	ND and HND	1987
5.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bauchi	ND and HND	1986
7.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bida	ND and HND	1986
3.	The Federal Polytechnic, Idah	ND and HND	1985
).	The Federal Polytechnic, Ilaro	ND and HND	1985
10	The Federal Polytechnic, Kaura-Namoda	ND only	1985
11.	The Federal Polytechnic, Nassarawa*	ND andHND*	1985
12.	Institute of Management and Techn. (IMT), Enugu	ND only	1985
13.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna*	ND and HND*	1985, 1991
14.	Kano State Polytechnic, Kano	ND only	1990
15.	Kaduna State Polytechnic, Zaria	ND only	1992
6.	Katsina Polytechnic, Katsina	ND and HND	1986, 1992
17.	Kwara State Polytechnic, Ilorin	ND and HND	1985, 1987
8.	Lagos State Polytechnic, Isolo	ND only	1985
19.	Nigerian Army School of Finance & Admin., Lagos*	ND only*	1992
20.	Ogun State Polytechnic, Abeokuta	ND only	1985
21.	Ondo State Polytechnic, Owo	ND only	1987
22.	Plateau State Polytechnic, Barkin Ladi	ND only	1987
23.	Ramat Polytechnic, maiduguri	ND only	1987
4.	Rivers State Polytechnic, Bori *	ND and HND*	1992
5.	The Federal Polytechnic, Offa*	ND *only	1993
26.	The Polytechnic, Calabar	ND and HND	1986
7.	The Polytechnic, Ibadan	ND and HND	1985
8.	The Polytechnic, Iree*	ND and HND*	1993 and 1994
29.	The Federal Polytechnic, Nekede, Owerri *	ND and HND*	1985/1991
30.	Yaba College of Technology, Yaba	ND and HND	1985, 1989

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation.

# INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

LI	LIBRARY SCIENCE			
	Institutions Running Them	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved	
1. 2.	The Federal Polytechnic, Oko, Anambra State * The Federal Polytechnic, Nekede	ND and HND* ND and HND	1991 1992	

M	MASS COMMUNICATION			
	Institutions Running Them	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved	
1.	The Federal Polytechnic, Oko, Anambra State	ND and HND	1987, 1990	
2.	The Federal Polytechnic, Auchi	ND only	1987	
3.	I.M.T. Enugu	ND only	1985	
4.	Kaduna Polytechnic Kaduna*	ND only*	1992	
5.	Ogun State Polytechnic, Abeokuta	ND and HND	1985	
6.	The Polytechnic, Calabar	ND only	1985	
7.	The Polytechnic, Ibadan (Main Campus)	ND and HND*	1985 and 1994*	
8.	The Polytechnic, Ibadan (Eruwa Campus)	ND only	1991	

# **ENGINEERING TECHNOLOGY**

	Institutions Running Them	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
1.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bida *	ND and HND*	1985 and 1993*
2.	Institute of Management and Techn., (IMT) Enugu	ND and HND	1985
3.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna	ND and HND	1988 and 1991
4.	Lagos State Polytechnic, Isolo*	ND* only.	1992

	Institutions Running Them	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
1. 2.	Akanu Ibiam Federal Polytechnic, Umwana The Federal Polytechnic, Auchi HND Options in:	ND only ND and HND	1993 1985
3.	<ul> <li>A. Structural Engineering Technology</li> <li>B. Transportation/Engineering Technology</li> <li>C. Water Resources and Public Health Eng. Tech.</li> <li>The Federal Polytechnic, Ado-Ekiti</li> </ul>	ND only	1985

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending Accreditation

CIV	CIVIL ENGINEERING TECHNOLOGY (CONT'D.)			
	Institutions Running Them	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved	
4.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bauchi	ND only	1987	
5.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bida	ND and HND	1985 and 1992	
	HND Option in:			
	A. Structural Engineering Technology			
6.	B. Transportation Engineering Technology The Federal Polytechnic, Idah	ND only	1002	
7.	The Federal Polytechnic, Idan The Federal Polytechnic, Ilaro	ND and HND*	1992 1985 and 1992	
1.	HND Option in:	ND and TIND	1903 and 1992	
	A. Structural Engineering Technology			
8.	Institute of Management & Tech., (IMT) Enugu*	ND and HND*	1985 and 1991	
	HND Option in:		1505 and 1551	
	A. Structural Engineering Technology*			
	B. Transportation Engineering Technology*	diam'r.		
9.	Kaduna Polytechnic	ND and HND*	1985 and 1992	
	HND Option in:			
	A. Structural Engineering Technology			
	B. Transportation Engineering Technology			
	C. Water Resources & Public Health Engineering		The state of the s	
10.	Kwara State Polytechnic, Ilorin*	ND and HND*	1985 and 1992	
	HND Option in:			
44	A. Strucrual Engineering Technology*	ND 1	4000	
	Lagos State Polytechnic, Lagos	ND only	1992	
12.	National Water Resources Inst., Kaduna.  HND Option in:	ND and HND	1991	
	A. Water Resources & Public Health		2	
13	Ondo State Polytechnic, Owo	ND only	1991	
	Plateau State Polytechnic, Barkin-Ladi	ND only	1985	
	Ramat Polytechnic, Maiduguri	ND only	1985	
	Rivers State Polytechnic, Bori*	ND *only	1991/1992	
17.	The Polytechnic, Calabar	ND and HND	1985	
	HND Option in:			
	A. Structural Engineering Technology		The state of the s	
	B. Transportation Engineering Technology			
18.	The Polytechnic, Ibadan	ND and HND	1985 and 1987	
	HND Options in:			
	A. Structural Engineering Technology			
	B. Transportation/Engineering Technology			
	C. Water Resources and Public Health Eng. Tech.		1001	
19.	The Polytechnic Nekede, Owerri*	ND only*	1991	
20.	The Polytechnic, Birnin Kebbi	ND and HND*	1985 and 1992	
	HND Option in:			
21	A. Structural Engineering Technology.*	NID LIDID	1005	
21.	Yaba College of Technology, Yaba HND Options in:	ND and HND	1985	
	A. Structural Engineering Technology			
	B. Transportation Engineering Technology			
	2. Transportation Difficoring reciniology			

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending Accreditation

dited/red

dited/ved

990

1994\*

edited/-

1993\*

1991

dited/-/ed

	Institutions Offering The Programme	Level	Year Accredited/ Approved
1.	The Federal Polytechnic, Auchi	ND only	1985
2.	The Federal Polytechnic, Ado-Ekiti	ND only	1985
3.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bauchi*	ND and HND*	1987/92
	HND Options in:		
	A. Electronics and Communication		
4.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bida	NDand HND	1985
	HND Options in:		
	A. Electronics and Communication Eng. Techn.		
	B. Power and Machines Technology		1001
5.	Benue Polytechnic, Ugbokolo	ND and HND	1991
6.	The Federal Polytechnic, Idah	ND only	1985
7.	The Federal Polytechnic, Ilaro	ND only	1987
8.	The Federal Polytechnic, Mubi	ND and HND	1985 and 1986
	HND Option in:		
	A. Electronic & Comm. Eng. Technology		1005
9.	The Akanu Ibiam Federal Polytechnic, Unwana	ND only	1985
10.	Institute of Management and Techn., (IMT) Enugu*	ND and HND*	1985, 1991/92
	HND Options in:		
	A. Electrical/Electronic Engineering Technology		
	B. Power/Machine	ND IVD	1007
11.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna	ND and HND	1987
	HND Options in:		
	A. Electronic and Communication Eng. Techn.		
10	B. Power and Machines Technology	NID ander	1991
	Kano State Polytechnic, Kano	ND only ND only*	1991
	Katsina State Polytechnic, Katsina*	ND and HND	1987
14.	Kwara State Polytechnic, Ilorin	ND and HND	1987
	HND Options in:		
	A. Power and Machines Technology		
15	B. Electronic and Comm. Eng. Technology	ND only	1992
	Lagos State Polytechnic Isolo	ND only	1992
	Ondo State Polytechnic	ND only	1987
	Plateau State Polytechnic, Barkin-Ladi Ramat Polytechnic, Maiduguri	ND only	1987
		ND only *	1992
19.	Rivers State Polytechnic, Bori* The Polytechnic, Birnin-Kebbi*	ND and HND	1985, 1992
20.		IND and Thin	1905, 1992
	HND Options in 21. Electronic and Communication Engineering		
	22. Power and Machines		
23.	The Polytechnic, Calabar	ND only	1985
23. 24.	The Polytechnic, Calabai	ND and HND	1985
24.	HND Options in:	11D and 1111D	
	A. Electronic and Communications Eng. Techn.		
	B. Power and Machines Technology		
25.	The Federal Polytechnic, Nekede-Owerri	ND only	1987
٠.).	The Tederal Folyteenine, Newcde-Owelli	1.D only	1707

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation.

ELECTRICAL, ELECTRICATO ENGINEERING TECH	ELECTRICAL/ELECTRONIC ENGINEERING TECHNOLOGY (CONT.)		
Institutions Offering The Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved	
<ul> <li>26. Yaba College of Technology, Yaba HND Options in: A. Electronic and Communication Eng. Techn. B. Power and Machines Technology</li> </ul>	ND and HND	1985 and 1986	

FC	DUNDRY ENGINEERING TECHNOLOGY		
	Institutions Running Them	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
1.	Federal Polytechnic, Idah*	ND only*	1992
IR	RIGATION ENGINEERING TECHNOLOGY		
	<b>Institutions Offering The Programme</b>	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
1.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna	ND and HND	1987
2.	Ramat Polytechnic, Maiduguri The Polytechnic Birnin-Kebbi	ND only ND and HND	1987
3.			1985

	Institutions Offering The Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
1.	The Akanu Ibiam Federal Polytechnic Unwana*	ND only*	1992
2.	Benue Polytechnic, Ugbokolo	ND only*	1992
3.	The Federal Polytechnic, Auchi	ND only	1985
4.	The Federal Polytechnic, Ado-Ekiti	ND only	1989
5.	The Federal Polytechnic Bauchi	ND only	1990
6.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bida	ND only	1985
7.	The Federal Polytechnic, Idah*	ND only*	1994
8.	The Federal Polytechnic, Ilaro*	ND only*	1992
9.	The Federal Polytechnic Mubi	ND and HND*	1989 and 1993
	HND Options in:		
	A. Automotive Engineering		
	B. Production Engineering		
10.	The Federal Polytechnic, Nassarawa	ND *only	1994
11.	The Federal Polytechnic Nekede, Owerri *	ND *only	1991
12.	Institute of Management and Techn., (IMT) Enugu*	ND and HND*	1985 and 1991
	HND Options in:		
	A. Automobile Engineering Technology*		Depart
	B. Production Engineering Technology*		
13.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna	ND and HND	1985
	HND Options in:		
	A. Plant Engineering Technology		
	B. Production Engineering Technology		

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation.

	Institutions Offering The Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
	Kano State Polytechnic, Kano	ND and HND	1990
15.	Kwara State Polytechnic, Ilorin, Kwara State	ND and HND	1986
	HND Options in:		
	A. Automobile Engineering Technology		
	B. Plant Engineering		
	C. Power Engineering		
	D. Production Engineering Technology	ND 1 *	1000
	Lagos State Polytechnic, Isolo*	ND only*	1992
17.	THE STATE OF THE COLUMN THE COUNTY OF THE STATE OF THE ST	ND only*	1991
18	Ramat Polytechnic, Maiduguri	ND only	1985
19.	Rivers State Polytechnic, Bori*	ND only*	1992
20.	The Polytechnic, Birnin-Kebbi, Kebbi State *	ND and HND*	1985 and 1992*
	HND Options in:		
	A. Automobile Engineering Tech*		
21	B. Production Engineering Tech*	ND and HND	1985
21.	The Polytechnic, Calabar	ND and HND*	1985 and 1992*
	HND Options in	ND and AND	1903 and 1992
	A. Power Engineering		
22	B. Production Engineering Technology The Polytechnic, Ibadan	ND and HND	1985 and 1989
22.		ND and TIND	1905 and 1909
	HND Option in: A. Production Engineering Technology.		
23.	Yaba College of Technology, Yaba		
43.			
	<ul><li>HND Option in:</li><li>A. Production Engineering Technology.</li></ul>		

_	ETALLURGY		
	Institutions Offering The Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
1.	The Federal Polytechnic, Idah	ND and HND	1985 and 1991
2.	The Polytechnic, Birnin- Kebbi	ND only	1985
3.	Kwara State Polytechnic, Ilorin	ND only	1986

MINING ENGINEERING TECHNOLOGY			
	Institutions Offering The Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
1.	The Federal Polytechnic, Ado-Ekiti	ND only	1985
2.	Kwara State Polytechnic, Ilorin.	ND and HND	1986
3.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna	ND and HND	1985

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation.

eredited/coved

85 d 1992\*

nd 1989

re	dited/- ved
nd	1991
86	

redited/oved

PE	TROLEUM ENGINEERING TECHNOLOGY		
2.22.114	Institutions Offering The Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
1.	Petroleum Training Institute (PTI) Effurun	ND only	1993

# **ENVIROMENTAL DESIGN STUDIES**

	Institutions Offering The Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
1.	The Federal Polytechnic, Oko, Anambra State	ND only	1989
2.	College of Technology, Esa-Oke*	ND*	1993
3.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bauchi*	ND*	1993
4.	The Federal Polytechnic, Kaura- Namoda	ND only	1988
5.	The Federal Polytechnic, Nassarawa	ND only	1988
6.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna	ND and HND	1985
7.	Kano State Polytechnic, Kano	ND and HND	1990
8.	Kwara State Polytechnic, Ilorin	ND and HND	1985
9.	Lagos State Polytechnic, Isolo	ND only	1992
10.	Ogun State Polytechnic, Abeokuta	ND and HND	1985
11.	Ondo State Polytechnic, Owo	ND and HND	1985
12.	Ramat Polytechnic Maiduguri	ND only	1990
13.	The Polytechnic, Birnin Kebbi*	ND and HND*	1985, 1991
14.	The Polytechnic, Calabar	ND and HND	1985, 1991
15.	Federal Polytechnic Nekede, Owerri	ND and HND	1985
16.	The Polytechnic, Ibadan	ND and HND	1985
17.	The Polytechnic Ibadan, (Saki Campus)	ND only	1985
18.		ND and HND	1985

	Institutions Offering The Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
1.	The Federal Polytechnic, Oko, Anambra State	ND only	1989
2.	The Federal Polytechnic, Auchi,	HND only*	1992
3.	The Federal Polytechnic, Ado-Ekiti	ND and HND	1987
4.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bida	ND only	1985
5.	The Federal Polytechnic, Ilaro	ND only	1985
6.	The Federal Polytechnic, Kaura-Namoda	ND only	1988
7.	Institute of Management and Techn. (IMT), Enugu	ND and HND	1985
8.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna.	ND and HND	1985
9.	Kano State Polytechnic	ND only	1990
10.	Katsina Polytechnic, Katsina	ND only	1988
11.	The Polytechnic Birnin-Kebbi, Kebbi State.	ND and HND	1985 and 1988
12.	The Federal Polytechnic Nekede, Owerri*	ND and HND*	1992
13.	Kwara State Polytechnic, Ilorin	ND and HND	1985 and 1988
14.	Ramat Polytechnic, Maiduguri	ND only	1990
15.	Yaba College of Technology, Yaba	ND and HND	1985

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation.

C	CARTOGRAPHY			
	Institutions Offering The Programme	Level	Year Accre Appro	
1.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna	ND and HND	1985, 1	

	Institutions Offering The Programme	Level	Year Accr Appro
1.	College of Technology, Esa-Oke*	ND only*	199
2.	The Federal Polytechnic, Auchi	ND and HND	198.
3	The Federal Polytechnic, Bauchi	ND and HND	198.
4.	The Federal Polytechnic, Nassarawa	ND only	198
5.	The Federal Polytechnic, Oko, Anambra State	ND only	199
6.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna	ND and HND	198
7.	Kwara State Polytechnic, Ilorin	ND only	1986
8.	Ramat Polytechnic, Maiduguri	ND only	198:
9.	The Polytechnic, Birnin-Kebbi, Kebbi State	ND* only	1992
10.	The Polytechnic, Calabar	ND and HND	1983
11.	The Polytechnic, Ibadan	ND and HND	1983
12.	The Polytechnic, Ibadan (Saki Campus)*	ND only*	1993
13.	The Federal Polytechnic, Nekede, Owerri	ND and HND	1985, 1
14.	Yaba College of Technology, Yaba	ND and HND	1985, 1

LA	ND SURVEYING		
	Institutions Offering The Programme	Level	Year Accre Approv
1.	College of Technology, Esa-Oke.*	ND only*	1993
2.	The Federal Polytechnic, Ado-Ekiti	ND only	1987
3.	The Federal Polytechnic, Auchi	ND only	1985
4.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bauchi	ND only	1988
5.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bida	ND only	1985
6.	The Federal Polytechnic, Idah	ND only	1990
7.	The Federal Polytechnic, Mubi*	ND and HND*	1986 and
8.	The Federal Polytechnic, Nekede, Owerri	ND only	1985
9.	Federal Survey School, Oyo	ND and HND	1990 and
10.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna	ND and HND	1985
11.	Kwara State Polytechnic, Ilorin*	ND and HND*	1985, 1
12.	Ondo State Polytechnic, Owo	ND only	1985
13.	Ramat Polytechnic, Maiduguri	ND only	1985
14.	The Polytechnic Birnin-Kebbi, Kebbi State	ND only	1985
15.	The Polytechnic, Ibadan	ND only	198:
16.	Yaba College of Technology, Yaba.	ND only	1985

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation.

Accredited/-Approved

1985, 1987

Accredite pproved	e <b>d</b> /-
1993	
1985	
1985	
1988	
1990	
1985	
1986	
1985	
1992	
1985	
1985	
1991	
85, 1988	
85, 1991	

я	204 77
Α	ccredited/-
á	
n	proved
м	

P	PHOTOGRAMMETRY		
	Institutions Running the programmes	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
1.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna	ND and HND	1988

	Institutions Offering The Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
1.	College of Technology Esa-Oke*	ND only*	1992
2.	The Federal Polytechnic, Auchi	ND and HND	1985, 1987
3.	The Federal Polytechnic Ilaro	ND only	1993
4.	The Federal Polytechnic, Nassarawa*	ND and HND*	1985
5.	The Federal Polytechnic, Nekede, Owerri	ND and HND	1985
6.	The Federal Polytechnic, Oko, Anambra State	ND only	1988
7.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna	ND and HND	1985
8.	Kwara State Polytechnic, Ilorin	ND and HND	1985
9.	Lagos State Polytechnic, Isolo*	ND only*	1993
10.	Ogun State Polytechnic, Abeokuta	ND and HND	1985
11.	Ondo State Polytechnic, Owo	ND and HND	1985
12.	Plateau State Polytechnic, Barkin-Ladi	ND only	1985
13.	Ramat Polytechnic, Maiduguri	ND and HND	1985
14.	The Polytechnic, Calabar	ND and HND	1985
15.	The Polytechnic, Ibadan	ND and HND	1987
16.	The Polytechnic Ibadan (Saki Campus)*	ND only*	1991
17.	The Polytechnic, Birnin-Kebbi*	ND only*	1992
18.	Yaba College of Technology, Yaba	ND and HND	1985

	Institutions Offering The Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
1.	The Federal Polytechnic, Oko, Anambra State.	ND only	1989
2.	The Federal Polytechnic, Auchi	ND and HND	1985
3.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bida*	ND and HND*	1985, 1992
4.	The Federal Polytechnic, Kaura-Namoda	ND only	1985
5.	The Federal Polytechnic, Nassarawa	ND only	1988
6.	Institute of Management and Techn. (IMT), Enugu	HND only	1985
7.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna	ND and HND	1985, 1987
8.	Kano State Polytechnic, Kano	ND only	1985
9.	Katsina Polytechnic, Katsina	ND only	1988
10.	Kwara State Polytechnic, Ilorin	ND only	1987
11.	Ondo State Polytechnic, Owo	ND and HND	1985
12.	The Polytechnic Birnin-Kebbi, Kebbi State.	ND and HND	1985, 1988
13.	The Polytechnic, Ibadan	ND and HND	1985, 1988
14.	The Polytechnic Ibadan, (Saki Campus)*	ND only*	1991
15.	The Federal Polytechnic Nekede, Owerri*	ND and HND*	1988, 1991
16.	Yaba college of Technology, Yaba	ND and HND	1985

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation.

QUANTITY SURVEYING & BUILDING TECHNOLO	OGY	
Institutions Offering the Programmes	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
1. College of Technology, Esa - Oke	ND only	1993/94

# **HOSPITALITY AND RELATED TECHNOLOGY**

	<b>Institutions Offering The Programme</b>	Level	Year Accredited/ Approved
1.	Benue State Polytechnic, Ugbokolo	ND and HND	1985
2.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bauchi	ND and HND	1986
3.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bida	ND only	1985
4.	The Federal Polytechnic, Idah	ND and HND	1985
5.	The Federal Polytechnic, Mubi	ND only	1986
6.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna	ND and HND	1985
7.	Kano State Polytechnic, Kano*	ND only	1993
8.	Kwara State Polytechnic, Ilorin	ND and HND	1985
9.	Katsina State Polytechnic	ND* only	1989
10.	Lagos State Polytechnic, Isolo*	ND and HND*	1985
11.	Ondo State Polytechnic, Owo	ND and HND	1985
12.	Plateau State Polytechnic, Barkin-Ladi	ND only	1985
13.	Ramat Polytechnic, Maiduguri	ND only	1985
14.	Yaba College of Technology, Yaba.*	ND and HND*	1986, 1993

H	HOME ECONOMICS & MANAGEMENT				
	Institutions Offering The Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved		
1.	Akperan Orkshi College of Agric. Yandev	ND only*	1993		
2.	College of Agriculture, Jalingo*	ND only*	1992		

N	NUTRITION AND DIETETICS			
	Institutions Running Them	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved	
1. 2.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna Ramat Polytechnic, Maiduguri	ND and HND ND only	1985 1985	

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation.

TOURISM			
	Institutions Running Them	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
1. 2.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna Plateau State Polytechnic, Barkin-Ladi	ND and HND ND only	1985 1985

# SCIENCE, COMPUTING AND RELATED TECHNOLOGY

ted/-

ed/-

C	COMPUTER STUDIES				
	Institutions Offering the Programmes	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved		
1.	Institute of Management and Tech. (IMT), Enugu	ND only	1985		
2.	Kwara State Polytechnic, Ilorin	ND and HND	1987		
3.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna	ND only	1992		
4.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Zaria*	ND only*	1992		
5.	The Akanu - Ibiam Federal Polytechnic Unwana	ND only*	1992		
6.	The Polytechnic, Ibadan	ND and HND	1987		
7.	The Polytechnic, Iree, Osun State*	ND only*	1993		
8.	Rivers State Polytechnic, Bori*	ND only*	1993		
9.	Yaba College of Technology, Yaba*	ND and HND*	1992		

CERAMICS AND GLASS TECHNOLOGY	9	
Institutions Offering the Programmes	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
1. The Federal Polytechnic, Ado Ekiti*	ND* only	1990

LEATHER TECHNOLOGY		
Institutions Offering the Programmes	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
1. The College of Chemical and Leather Technology*	ND* only	1993

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending Accreditation

FOOD TECHNOLOGY			
	Institutions Running Them	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
1.	The Federal Polytechnic, Ado-Ekiti	ND and HND	1985, 1987
2.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bauchi	ND and HND	1985
3.	The Federal Polytechnic, Idah	ND and HND	1985
4.	The Federal Polytechnic, Ilaro	ND only	1985
5.	The Federal Polytechnic, Mubi	ND and HND	1987
6.	The Federal Polytechnic Nekede - Owerri	ND and HND	1992
7.	Institute of Management and Techn. (IMT), Enugu	ND and HND	1985
8.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna	ND and HND	1985
9.	Lagos State Polytechnic, Isolo*	ND only*	1992
10.	Ogun State Polytechnic, Abeokuta	ND only	1985
11.	Ondo State Polytechnic, Owo	ND only	1985
12.	Yaba College of Technology, Yaba	ND and HND	1985, 1992

	Institutions Running Them	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
1.	The Akanu Ibiam Federal Polytechnic, Unwana	Remedial	1989
2.	Akperan Orkshi College of Agriculture, Yandev*	Remedial	1993
3.	Bauchi State Polytechnic*	Remedial*	1989
4.	Benue Polytechnic, Ugbokolo	Remedial	1985
5.	Borno State College of Agriculture	Remedial	1991
6.	College of Agriculture, Jalingo	Remedial	1989
7.	College of Agriculture, Samaru - Zaria	Remedial	1991
8.	College of Agriculture, Zuru	Remedial	1991
9.	The Federal Polytechnic, Ado - Ekiti	Remedial	1993
10.	The Federal Polytechnic, Oko - Anambra State	Remedial	1987
11.	The Federal Polytechnic, Auchi	Remedial	1985
12.	The Federal College of Agric., Akure*	Remedial*	1993
13.	Fed. College of Wild-Life Management New Bussa*	Remedial*	1992
14.	Federal College of Agriculture, Umudike	Remedial	1989
15.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bauchi	Remedial	1985
16.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bida	Remedial	1985
17.	The Federal Polytechnic, Idah	Remedial	1987
18.	Federal College of Forestry, Ibadan	Remedial	1992
19.	Federal College of Forestry, Jos.	Remedial	1992
20.	The Federal Polytechnic, Kaura-Namoda	Remedial	1985
21.		Remedial	1986
22.	Federal College of Fresh-Water Fisheries, New Bussa	Remedial	1992
23.	Institute of Management and Tech. (IMT) Enugu	Remedial	1985
24.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna	Remedial	1985
25.	Kano State Polytechnic, Kano	Remedial	1985

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation.

# Accredited/proved 85, 1987 1985 1985 1987 1992 1985 1985 1992 1985 1985 5, 1992

ccre	dited/- ed
Service Control	

	Institutions Running Them	Level	Year Accredited/ Approved
26.	Katsina Polytechnic, Katsina	Remedial	1985
27.	Kwara State Polytechnic, Ilorin	Remedial	1985
28.	Lagos State Polytechnic, Isolo	Remedial	1989
29.	0 0 0 0	Remedial	1989
30.	National Institute for Water Resources, Kaduna	Remedial	1991
31.	Niger State College of Agric., Mokwa*	Remedial*	1990
32.	Ogun State Polytechnic, Abeokuta	Remedial	1985
	Ramat Polytechnic, Maiduguri	Remedial	1989
34.	Rivers State Polytechnic, Bori*	Remedial*	1993
35.	The Polytechnic, Calabar	Remedial	1985
36.	The Polytechnic, Ibadan (Main Campus)	Remedial	1985
37.	The Polytechnic, Iree	Remedial	1993.
38.	The Polytechnic, Nekede Owerri	Remedial	1989
39.		Remedial	1985
40.	The Federal Polytechnic Offa*	Remedial*	1993
41.	Federal College of Chemical and Leather Techn.*	Remedial*	1993

RI	RUBBER AND POLYMER TECHNOLOGY		
	Institutions Running Them	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
1.	The Federal Polytechnic, Auchi	ND only	1990

30	CIENCE LABORATORY TECHNOLOGY (GEO	LOGI OF HON)	
7	Institutions Running Them	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
1.	The Polytechnic, Ibadan  HND Option in: A. Geology	ND and HND	1985

SC	SCIENCE LABORATORY TECHNOLOGY		
	Institutions Offering The Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
1.	Benue State Polytechnic, Ugbokolo  HND Options in:  A. Biology/Microbiology  B. Chemistry/Biochemistry  C. Physics with Electronics	ND and HND	1985
2.	The Federal Polyechnic, Ado-Ekiti  HND Options in:  A. Biology  B. Chemistry  C. Physics with Electronics	ND and HND	1985

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation.

	Institutions Offering The Programme	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved
3.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bauchi	ND and HND	1986
	HND Otion in:		
	A. Biology/Microbiology		
	B. Chemistry/Biochemistry		
	C. Physics with Electronics		1 4 2 1 1 1
4.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bida*	ND and HND*	1985 and 1992*
	HND Option in:		
	A. Chemistry*		
	B. Biology*		
5.	The Federal Polytechnic, Ilaro	ND and HND	1985 and 1992
	HND Option in:		
	A. Chemistry		4
6.	The Federal Polytechnic, Idah	ND and HND	1989 and 1991
	HND Option in		
	A. Chemistry		
7.	The Federal Polytechnic, Kaura-Namoda	ND only	1988
8.	The Federal Polytechnic, Mubi*	ND only*	1991
9.	The Akanu Ibiam Federal Polytechnic Unwana*	ND and HND*	1987 and 1991*
	HND Options in:		
	A. Biology*		
	B. Biochemistry*	6	
	C. Biology/Microbiology*		
	D. Chemistry*		
	E Chemistry/Biochemistry*		
10.	Institute of Management and Techn. (IMT), Enugu	ND and HND	1985
	HND Options in:		
	A. Chemistry		
	B. Microbiology		
	C. Physics with Electronics		
11.	Kaduna State Polytechnic, Zaria	ND only	1991
12.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna	ND and HND	1985
	HND Options in:		
	A. Chemistry		
	B. Biology/Microbiology		
	C. Physics with Electronics		
13.	Kano State Polytechnic, Kano	ND only	1991

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation.

WHERE
Accredited/- pproved
1986
and 1992*
5and 1992
and 1991
and 1991
1988
1991
and 1991*
1985
State of the last
1991
1985

	Institutions Running Them	Level	Year Accredited/ Approved
14.	Kwara State Polytechnic, Ilorin HND Options in:	ND and HND	1985
	A. Biology/Microbiology		1991
	B. Biochemistry		1985
	C. Chemistry		1703
	D. Physics with Electronics		
15.	Lagos State Polytechnic, Isolo	ND only	1989
	Ogun State Polytechnic, Abeokuta*	ND and HND*	1985 and 1991*
	HND Options in:		2700 444 2772
	A. Biology		
	B. Microbiology	100	
	C. Chemistry		
	D. Physics with Electronics	1	T
17.	Plateau State Polytechnic, Barkin-Ladi	ND only	1985
	Ramat Polytechnic, Maiduguri	ND only	1985
19.	The Polytechnic, Calabar	ND and HND	1985
	HND Options in:		
	A. Chemistry/Biochemistry		
	B. Microbiology/Biology		
	C. Physics/Electronics		
20.	The Polytechnic, Ibadan	ND and HND	1985
	HND Options in:		
	A. Biology/Microbiology		
	B. Chemistry		
	C. Physics with Electronics		
21.	The Federal Polytechnic, Iree	ND only	1993 and 1994
22.	The Federal Polytechnic, Nekede Owerri	ND and HND	1985 and 1992
	HND Options in:		
	A. Biology./Microbiology		
	B. Chemistry*	HND only*	1991
23.	Yaba College of Technology, Yaba	ND and HND	1985
	HND Options in:		
	A. Biology/Microbiology		
	B. Chemistry/Biochemistry		
14.	C. Physics with Electronics		

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation.

	Institutions Running Them	Level	Year Accredited/ Approved	
1.	Benue State Polytechnic, Ugbokolo	ND only	1986	
2.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bida*	ND and HND*	1985, 1992	
3.	The Federal Polytechnic, Idah*	ND only*	1992	
4.	The Federal Polytechnic Kaura - Namoda	ND only*	1992	
5.	The Federal Polytechnic, Nasarawa	ND only*	1993	
6.	Institute of Management and Tech. (IMT) Enugu	ND and HND	1985	
7.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna	ND and HND	1985, 1991	
8.	Kaduna State Polytechnic, Zaria	ND only	1991	
9.	Kano State Polytechnic*	ND ony*	1991	
10.	Katsina Polytechnic, Katsina	ND only	1988	
11.	Kwara State Polytechnic, Ilorin	ND and HND	1985	
12.	The Polytechnic, Iree, Osun State	ND only	1992	
13.	Ramat Polytechnic, Maiduguri	ND only	1985	
14.	The Polytechnic, Birnin-Kebbi, Kebbi State	ND only	1985	
15.	The Polytechnic, Calabar	ND and HND	1985	
16.	The Polytechnic, Ibadan (Main Campus)	ND and HND	1985	
17.	Yaba College of Technology, Yaba	ND and HND	1987	

TE	TEXTILE TECHNOLOGY						
	Institutions Running Them	Level	Year Accredited/- Approved				
1. 2.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna Yaba College of Technology, Yaba*	ND and HND ND only*	1987 1991 and 1992				

<sup>\*</sup> Approved to run pending accreditation.

ACCREDITED PROGRAMMES IN POLYTECHNICS AND SIMILAR TECHNOLOGY
YOU JOHN THE HALL HAVE AND SIMILAR TECHNOLOGY
INSTITUTIONS
ARE AND DESIGN
ARE AN

	Caco.	AGRICULTURAL AND RELATED TECHNOLOGY									
	INSTITUTIONS	Agric. Eng. and Mechani- zation	Agric. Manage- ment & Extension	Animal Health & Prod/ Techn.	Agricul- tural Tech- nology	Crop Produc- tion Techn.	Fisheries Techno- logy	Fore- stry Tech- nology	Hort culture and Land- scaping	Wood and Paper Tech nology	
1	Borno State College of Agric. Maiduguri	Lution						6itilde	A Duniour	M. T. Eng activitie Perf	
2.	Bauchi State College of Agric.			16.	Pn		-	CHSC2	dario Nio	STRIK ORB.	
3.	College of Agric. Jalingo		PH	no a			-	HPw1	inflastvio¶	aint State	
4.	College of Agric., Kaba					PH	Regis	75.00	PH	and training	
5.	College of Agric. Samaru Zaria		0	0	<b>—</b>	<del>                                     </del>	Acamma 2 a	100 or 2 ft o	ndarili din		
6.	College of Agriculture, Zuru			l a	Pn	-	ending 2 v	WILLIAM TO	nder Pie	521A10 1 = 64	
7.	College of Agric. & Animal Science, Mando Road, Kaduna.		PH		11 /6	Mar.	other the	s instal	of Flavorpal	atu Eogles etimal Co	
8.	Fed. College of Agric. Akure					PH					
9.	Fed. College of Agri.c, Ibadan	PH				PH					
10.	Fed. College of Agric. Umudike		0			0	1				
11.	Fed. Col. of A/Health & Production, Ibadan.	rgShihit	of amount	• PH	7		2	somr.	Tired		
12.	Federal Col. of A/Health & Production, Vom		1048	• PH		7124	an-m-nt	Lin,	mission?	saution of	
13.	Fed. College of Fisheries, Lagos						•0	182	A Similari	AnH Immis	
14.	Federal College of Fresh Water Fisheries, New Bussa				4	-	•		- 10	vs. I. (* 34)	
15.	Fed. College of Forestry, Ibadan							•			
16.	Fed. College of Forestry, Jos.							•		* 27	
17.	Fed. Polytechnic, Ado-Ekiti	Pn									
18.	Federal Polytechnic, Bauchi	•0									
19.	Federal Polytechnic, Bida	• PH						1000			
20.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna	•0							11		
21.	Kano State Polytechnic, Kano			Pn	•					-	
22.	Katsina Polytechnic, Katsina				•						
23.	Kwara State Polytechnic, Ilorin	PH•									
24.	Lagos State Polytechnic, Isolo	Pn	0	0	•	0					
25.	Michael Okpara College of Agric. Umuagwo		PH	•0		•0	•0	•0	PH		
26.	Niger State Coll. of Agric. Mokwa				Pn						
27.	Ondo State Polytechnic, Owo	Pn				1					
28.	Ramat Polytechnic, Maiduguri	PH•	N.		•						
29.	The Polytechnic, Calabar	•							- 31	•0	
30.	The Polytechnic, Birnin Kebbi	•0			1			1:0			
31.	The Fed. Poly., Nekede Owerri	•0								N H I	
32.	Akperan Orkshi College of Agriculture, Yandev.			Pn	Pn						

### **KEY TO ABBREVIATION**

redited/-oved

85 1991 91

redited/-oved

d 1992

•	Accredited at ND only	Pn	Approved to run Programme at ND pending accreditation
•0	Accredited at ND and HND	PH	Approved to run Programme at HNDpending acreditation
0	Accredited at HND only	PR	Approved to run Programme at Pre-ND pending recognition
R	Recognised Pre-ND Programme		

60

KE

		ART, PRINTING AND RELATED TECHNOLOGY					
	INSTITUTIONS	Art and Design	Fashion Design & Clothing Technology	Printing Technology			
1.	Federal Polytechnic, Auchi	•0					
2.	Benue Polytechnic, Ugbokolo	•0					
3.	I. M. T. Enugu	•0					
4.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna		•	•0			
5.	Kano StatePolytechnic, Kano	•0		•			
6.	Lagos State Polytechnic, Isolo	Pn					
7.	The Polytechnic, Ibadan (M/Campus)	•					
8.	The Polytechnic, Ibadan (Eruwa Campus)	•					
9.	Yaba College of Technology, Yaba	•0	•0	•.0			
10.	Federal College of Chemical and Leather Tech. Zaria						

	INSTITUTIONS	INFORMATION T	ECHNOLOGY
	INSTITUTIONS	Library Science Technology	Mass Communication
1.	The Federal Polytechnic, Oko, Anambra State	●PH	•0
2.	Federal Polytechnic, Auchi		
3,	I. M. T. Enugu		
4.	Kaduna Polytechnics, Kaduna.		Pn
5.	Ogun State Polytechnic, Abeokuta		•0
6.	The Polytechnic, Calabar		•
7.	The Polytechnic, Ibadan (Main Campus)		● PH
8.	The Polytechnic, Ibadan (Eruwa Campus)		ye.
9.	The Federal Polytechnic, Nekede-Owerri	•0	

•	Accredited at ND only	Pn	Approved to run Programme at ND pending accreditation
•0	Accredited at ND and HND	PH	Approved to run Programme at HNDpending acreditation
0	Accredited at HND only	PR	Approved to run Programme at Pre-ND pending recognition
R	Recognised Pre-ND Programme		

Y	
0	
	_
	-
_	4
0	-

ition	
Min.	
Bill	
Hen	
	EF

		FINANCE AND RELATED STUDIES							
	INSTITUTIONS	Accountancy	Banking and Finance	Insurance	Financial Studies				
1.	The Federal Poly., Unwana, Akanu Ibiam	● PH							
2.	The Federal Polytechnic, Oko, Anambra State	•0	•0						
3.	The Federal Polytechnic, Auchi	•0							
4.	Benue Polytechnic, Ugbokolo	•0							
5.	College of Technology, Esa-Oke		● PH						
6.	The Federal Polytechnic, Ado-Ekiti	•0							
7.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bauchi	•0							
8.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bida	•0	11						
9.	The Federal Polytechnic, Ede				Pn				
10.	The Federal Polytechnic, Idah	•0							
11.	The Federal Polytechnic, Ilaro	•0							
12.	The Federal Polytechnic, Kaura-Namoda	•			to "				
13.	The Federal Polytechnic, Mubi	•							
14.	The Federal Polytechnic, Nassarawa	•0							
15.	The Federal Polytechnic, Offa				Pn				
16.	I. M. T. Enugu	•0	•0	•0					
17.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna	•0							
18.	Kaduna State Polytechnic, Zaria	•	Pn						
19.	Kano State Polytechnic, Kano	• PH	•						
20.	Katsina State Polytechnic, Katsina	● PH							
21.	Kwara State Polytechnic, Ilorin	0	•0						
22.	Lagos State Polytechnic, Isolo	•0	Pn	•0					
23.	Nigerian Army School of Finance & Admin,. Lagos	•0							
24.	Ogun State Polytechnic, Abeokuta	PH●							
25.	Ondo State Polytechnic, Owo	•0							
26.	Plateau State Polytechnic, Barkin-Ladi								
27.	Ramat Polytechnic, Maiduguri								
28.	Rivers State Polytechnic, Bori	● PH	● PH						
29.	The Polytechnic, Calabar	•0							
30.	The Polytechnic, Ibadan (Main Campus)	• O	● PH	● PH					
31.	The Polytechnic, Birnin-Kebbi	● PH	PH		-				
32.	The Polytechnic, Nekede Owerri	•0	•0						
33.	The Federal Polytechnic, Iree	PH	PH		Pn				
34.	Yaba College of Technology, Yaba	•0							

•	Accredited at ND only	Pn	Approved to run Programme at ND pending accreditation
•0	Accredited at ND and HND	PH	Approved to run Programme at HNDpending acreditation
0	Accredited at HND only	PR	Approved to run Programme at Pre-ND pending recognition
R	Recognised Pre-ND Programme		

		BUSINESS AND RELATED STUDIES								
-	INSTITUTIONS	Business Admin. & Manage- ment.	Co- operative Studies	Marketing	Public Admi nistra- tion	Pur- chasing and Supply	Secre- tarial Studies	Business Studies		
1.	The Akanu Ibiam Fed. Polytechnic, Unwana	•0		PH			• 0			
2.	The Fed. Polytechnic, Oko, Anambra State	•0		•0			•0			
3.	The Federal Polytechnic, Auchi	•0		0			•0			
4.	Benue Polytechnic, Ugbokolo	•0		•0						
5.	The Federal Polytechnic, Ado-Ekiti	•0		•0			•0			
6.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bauchi	•0					•0			
7.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bida	•0		•0			•0			
8.	The Federal Polytechnic, Ede							Pn .		
9.	The Federal Polytechnic, Idah	•0		•0			•0			
10.	The Federal Polytechnic, Ilaro	•0		•0			•0			
11.	The Federal Polytechnic, Kaura-Namoda	•					•			
12.	The Federal Polytechnic, Mubi	•0								
13.	The Federal Polytechnic, Nassarawa	• PH					PHe			
14.	The Federal Polytechnic, Offa						Pn	Pn		
15.	I. M. T. Enugu	•0	•0	•0		•0	•			
16.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna	•0		•0		•0	PHe			
17.	Kaduna State Polytechnic, Zaria	•			•		•			
18.	Kano State Polytechnic, Kano	•0		•0		• PH				
19.	Katsina Polytechnic, Katsina	•0			PH		•0			
20.	Kwara State Polytechnic, Ilorin	•0		•0		•0	•0			
21.	Lagos State Polytechnic, Isolo	•0		•			•0			
22.	Nig. Army Sch. of finance & Admin., Lagos						Pn			
22.	Nig. Army Sch. of finance & Admin., Lagos						Pn			
23.	Ogun State Polytechnic, Abeokuta	•0		•0			•			
24.	Ondo State Polytechnic, Owo	•0					•			
25.	Plateau State Polytechnic, Barkin-Ladi	• PH			M ( a second		•			
26.	Ramat Polytechnic, Maiduguri	•0		0			•			
27.	Rivers State Polytechnic, Bori	• 0			-		• PH			
28.	The Polytechnic, Calabar	•0					•0			
29.	The Polytechnic, Ibadan (Main Campus)	• 0		• 0		• PH	•0			
30.	The Polytechnic Ibadan, (Eruwa Campus)			0		•				
31.	The Polytechnic, Birnin-Kebbi	• PH		• PH		•				
32.	The Federal Polytechnic, Nekede Owerri	• 0		•0		•0	• PH			
33.	The Polytechnic, Iree	РH		PH		PH	Pn			
34.	Yaba College of Technology, Yaba	•0					•0			
35.	Petroleum Training Institute, Effurun				401.004			•		

•	Accredited at ND only	Pn	Approved to run Programme at ND pending accreditation
•0	Accredited at ND and HND	PH	Approved to run Programme at HNDpending acreditation
0	Accredited at HND only	PR	Approved to run Programme at Pre-ND pending recognition
R	Recognised Pre-ND Programme		

s	Bilingual Secre- taryship
	taryship
-	
1	
1	
1	
1	
+	
+	
+	
+	
+	
1	
1	
I	
F	
-	
-	

					E	NGINEE	RING TEC	HNOLOG	Υ		
	INSTITUTIONS		Civil Engi- neering	Elect- rical/El. Engi neering	Foundry Tech- nology	Irrigation Engi- neering	Mecha- nical En- ginee- ring	Metal- lurgy	Mining Engi- neering	Petro- leumEng. Tech.	Wedding and Tab. Eng. Tech.
1.	The Fed. Poly., Unwana, A/Ibiam		Pn	•			Pn				
2.	The Federal Polytechnic, Auchi		•0	•			•				
3.	Benue Polytechnic, Ugbokolo			•			Pn				
4.	The Fed. Polytechnic, Ado-Ekiti		•	•			•		•		
5.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bauchi		•	• PH			•				
6.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bida	• PH	•0	•0			•				
7.	The Federal Polytechnic, Idah		•	•	Pn		Pn.	•0			
8.	The Federal Polytechnic, Ilaro		•0	•		-	Pn				
9.	The Federal Polytechnic, Mubi			•0			• PH				
10.	I. M. T. Enugu	•0	PH●	PH●			PH●				
11.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna	•0	•0	•0		•0	•0		•0		
12.	Kano State Polytechnic, Kano			•				<b>*</b>			
13.	Katsina St. Polytechnic, Katsina			Pn							
14.	Kwara State Polytechnic, Ilorin		•0	•0			•0	•	•0		
15.	Lagos State Polytechnic, Isolo	Pn	•	•			Pn				
16.	National Water Res. Inst., Kaduna		•0								
17.	Ogun State Poly., Abeokuta			Pn							
18.	Ondo State Polytechnic, Owo		•	•			Pn				
19.	Plateau State Poly., Barkin-Ladi		•	•							
20.	The Polytechnic, Birnin Kebbi		•0	• PH		•0	• PH	•			
21.	Ramat Polytechnic, Maiduguri		•	•		•	•				
22.	Rivers State Polytechnic, Bori		Pn	Pn			Pn				
23.	The Polytechnic, Calabar		•0	•			•0				
24.	The Polytechnic, Ibadan (M/Campus)		•0	• 0			PH●				
25.	The Fed. Polytechnic, Nekede, Owerri		Pn	•			Pn				
26.	Yaba College of Technology, Yaba		•0	•0			•0				
27.	The Federal Poly., Nasarawa				T		Pn				
28.	College of Tech. Esa Oke		-	Pn							
29.	Petroleum Training Institute, Effurun					-				•	Pn

•	Accredited at ND only	Pn	Approved to run Programme at ND pending accreditation
•0	Accredited at ND and HND	PH	Approved to run Programme at HNDpending acreditation
0	Accredited at HND only	PR	Approved to run Programme at Pre-ND pending recognition
R	Recognised Pre-ND Programme		

			ENVIROMENTAL DESIGN STUDIESS									
	INSTITUTIONS	Archi- tectural Tech- nology	Building Tech- nology	Carto- graphy	Estate Manage- ment	Land Sur- veying	Photo gram- metry	Quan- tity Sur- veying	Town & Regional Planning	Quantity Survey- ing/Build- ing Tech.		
1.	College of Tech., Esa-Oke	Pn		20	Pn	Pn			Pn	Pn		
2	The Fed. Poly., Oko, Anambra State	•	•		•			•	•			
3.	The Fed. Poly., Auchi		PH		•0	•		•0	•0			
4.	The Fed. Poly., Ado-Ekiti		•0			•			- 2			
5.	The Fed. Poly., Bauchi	Pn			•0							
6.	The Fed. Poly., Bida		•			•		• PH				
7.	The Fed. Poly., Idah							.e				
8.	The Fed. Poly., Ilaro		•						Pn			
9.	The Fed. Poly., Kaura-Namoda		•					• PH				
10.	The Fed. Poly., Mubi					•0						
11.	The Fed. Poly., Nassarawa	•			•			•	PH●			
12.	The Fed. Survey School, Oyo					•0						
13.	I.M.T. Enugu		0			(2-ne/m2)		0				
14.	Kaduna Poly., Kaduna	•0	•0	•0	•0	•0	•0	•0	•0			
15.	Kano, Poly., Kano	•0	•					• +				
16.	Katsina Poly., Katsina		•					•				
17.	Kwara State Poly., Ilorin	•0	•0	7//	•	• PH		•	•0			
18.	Lagos State Poly., Isolo	•		N.					•			
19.	Ogun State Poly., Abeokuta	•0							•0			
20.	Ondo State Poly., Owo	•0				•		•0	•0			
21.	Plateau State Poly., B/Ladi			_					•			
22.	Ramat Poly., Maiduguri	•			•	•			•0			
23.	The Polytechnic, Birnin Kebbi	•0	•0		Pn	•		•0	Pn			
24.	The Poly., Calabar	•0			•0				•0			
25.	The Poly., Ibadan (Main)	•0	2		•0	•		•0				
26.	The Fed. Poly., Nekede Owerri	•0	PH	P. COLUMN	•0	0		• PH	•0			
27.	Yaba Col. of Tech., Yaba	•0	•0	9	•0			•0	•0			
28.	The Poly. Ibadan, S/Campus	Pn		N N	Pn	2	29/1/20/02	Pn	Pn			

•	Accredited at ND only	Pn	Approved to run Programme at ND pending accreditation
•0	Accredited at ND and HND	PH	Approved to run Programme at HNDpending acreditation
0	Accredited at HND only	PR	Approved to run Programme at Pre-ND pending recognition
R	Recognised Pre-ND Programme		AT .

		HOSPITALITY AND RELATED TECHNOLOGY							
INSTITUTIONS		Catering & Hotel Management	Tourism	Nutrition & Dietetics	Home Economics				
1.	Akperan Orkshi College of Agric., Yandev				Pn				
2.	Benue Polytechnic, Ugbokolo	•O							
3.	College of Agriculture, Jalingo				Pņ				
4.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bauchi	•0							
5.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bida	•			14				
6.	The Federal Polytechnic, Idah	•0							
7.	The Federal Polytechnic, Mubi	•							
8.	.Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna	•0	•0	•0					
9.	Kano State Polytechnic, Kano	Pn							
10.	Katsina State Polytechnic, Katsina.	•							
11.	Kwara State Polytechnic, Ilorin.	•0							
12.	Lagos State Polytechnic, Isolo	PH●							
13.	Ondo State Polytechnic, Owo	•0							
14	Plateau State Polytechnic, Barkin-Ladi		•						
15.	Ramat Polytechnic, Maiduguri	•		•					
16.	Yaba College of Technology	● PH							

•	Accredited at ND only	Pn	Approved to run Programme at ND pending accreditation
•0	Accredited at ND and HND	PH	Approved to run Programme at HNDpending acreditation
0	Accredited at HND only	PR	Approved to run Programme at Pre-ND pending recognition
R	Recognised Pre-ND Programme		,

INSTITUTIONS		PRELIMINARY ND PROGRAMMES		
		Pre-ND Business Studies Pre-ND Science Tech		
1.	The Federal Poly.technic, Unwanu, Akanu Ibiam		R	
2.	Akperan Orkshi college of Agric., Yandev		PR	
3.	Bauchi State Polytechnic		PR	
4.	Benue Polytechnic, Ugbokolo	R	R	
5.	Borno State College of Agric., Maiduguri		R	
6	Our Saviour Institute of Science, Agric, & Tech. Enugu.	PR	PR	
7.	College of Agriculture, Jalingo		R	
8.	College of Agriculture, Samaru - Zaria		R	
9.	College of Agriculture, Zuru		PR	
10	Fed. College of Agriculture, Akure		PR	
11.	The Fed. Polytechnic, Auchi		R	
2.	The Fed. Polytechnic, Oko, Anambra State	R	R	
3.	Federal College of Wild Life Management, N/Bussa		PR	
4.	Federal College of Forestry, Ibadan		PR	
15.	The Federal Polytechnic, Ade-Ekiti		R	
6.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bauchi	R	R	
7.	The Federal Polytechnic, Bida	R	R	
8.	The Federal Polytechnic, Idah	R	R	
9.	Federal College of Forestry, Jos		R	
0.	The Federal Polytechnic, Kaura-Namoda	R	R	
1.	The Federal Polyetchnic, Nassarawa	R	PR	
2.	Fed. Fresh Water Fisheries School, New Bussa		R	
3.	The Federal Polytechnic, Mubi	R	R	
4.	The Federal Polytechnic, Offa, Kwara State	PR	PR	
5.	Federal School of Agriculture, Umudike		R	
6.	Institute of Management and Technology, Enugu.	R	R	
7.	Kaduna Polytechnic, Kaduna	R	R	
8.	Kaduna State Polytechnic, Zaria	R	R	
9.	Kano State Polytechnic, Kano	R	R	
0.	Katsina Potytechnic, Katsina	R	R	
1.	Kwara State Polytechnic, Ilorin	R	R	
2.	Lagos State Polytechnic, Isolo		R	
3.	Michael Okpara College of Agric., Umuagwo		R	
4.	National Water Resource Institute, Kaduna		R	
5.	Niger State College of Agriculture, Mokwa		PR	
6.	Ogun State Poiytechnic, Abeokuta		R	
7.	Plateau State Polytechnic Barkin-Ladi	R	R	
8.	The Polytechnic, Birnin Kebbi	R	R	
7.	Ramat Polytechnic, Maiduguri	R	B	
0.	Rivers State Polytechnic Bori	R	PR	
1.	The Polytechnic, Calabar	R	R	
2.	The Polytechnic, Ibadan (Main Campus)		R	
3.	The Federal Polytechnic, Nekede Owerri	R	R	
4.	Fed. Coll. of Chemical and Leather Tech., Zaria		PR	
5.	The Polytechnic, Iree	PR	PR	
6.	The Federal Polytechnic, Offa		PR	

## KEY TO ABBREVIATION

g	Accredited at ND only	Pn	Approved to run Programme at ND pending accreditation
•0	Accredited at ND and HND	РН	Approved to run Programme at HNDpending accreditation
0	Accredited at HND only	PR	Approved to run Programme at Pre-ND pending recognition
P	Recognised Pre-ND Programme		

				SCIENCE	COMPUTI	NG AND F	RELATED T	ECHNOL	OGY	
	INSTITUTIONS	Computer Studies	Food Tech.	Science Lab. Tech. (Geology)	Science Lab. Tech.	Statistics	Rubber & Polymer Tech.	Ceramic & Glass Tech.	Textile Tech.	Leather Tech.
1.	The Federal Poly., Auchi	2					•			
2.	Benue Poly., Ugbokolo				•0	•				
3.	The Fed. Coll. of Chem. & Leather Tech. Zaria									Pn
4.	The Fed. Poly., Ado-Ekiti		•0		•0			Pn		1
5.	The Fed. Poly., Bauchi		•0		•0					
6.	Fed. Poly., Bida				• PH	• PH				
7.	Fed. Poly., Idah		•0		• PH	Pn				
8.	The Fed. Poly., Ilaro		•		•0					
9.	The Fed. Poly., K./Namoda				•	Pn				
10.	The Fed. Poly., Mubi		• PH		Pn	7147				
11.	The Fed. Poly., Nasarawa				Pn	Pn		1	of ALL	
12.	I. M. T. Enugu	•	•0		•0	•0				
13.	Kaduna Poly., Kaduna.	•	•0	1	•0	•0			•0	
14.	Kaduna State Polytechnic, Zaria	Pn			•	•			The state of	
15.	Kano State Poly., Kano				•	Pn				
16.	Katsina Poly., Katsina.					•		11.15		
17.	Kwara State Poly., Ilorin	•0			•0	•0				
18.	Lagos State Poly., Isolo		Pn		•					
19.	Ondo State Poly., Owo		•				1			
20.	Ogun State Poly., Abeokuta		•		• PH		8			
21.	Ramat Poly., Maiduguri				•	•				
22.	Plateau State Poly., B/Ladi				•					
23.	The Polytechnic, Birnin Kebbi					•				
24.	Rivers State Poly., Bori	Pn								
25.	The Polytechnic Calabar				•0	•0				
26. 27.	The Poly., Ibadan (M/Campus) The Fed. Poly., Nekede Owerri	•0	Pn	•0	•0	•0				
28.	The Fed. Poly. Unwana A/Ibiam	Pn			• PH					
29.	The Polytechnic, Iree	Pn			Pn	•				
30.	Yaba College of Technology	• PH	•0		•0	•0			Pn .	

# KEY TO ABBREVIATION

•	Accredited at ND only	Pn	Approved to run Programme at ND pending accreditation
•0	Accredited at ND and HND	PH	Approved to run Programme at HNDpending acreditation
0	Accredited at HND only	PR	Approved to run Programme at Pre-ND pending recognition
R	Recognised Pre-ND Programme		

### HOW TO APPLY FOR ADMISSION INTO A PROGRAMME

All direct admissions into the National Diploma (ND) programme offered by the polytechnics in the country are now done by the Joint Admissions and Matriculation Board (JAMB), except for candidates who enrolled in the appropriate preliminary national diploma courses. Usually, a prospective candidate for national diploma programmes applies to JAMB for application form, write the matriculation examination and on the basis of his/her score in the examination and other criteria that may be laid down by the Proprietor of the institution a candidate may be offered provisional admission. The final admission of the candidate however, rests on his meeting the minimum departmental admissions requirements as laid down by the NBTE.

In the case of admissions into other programmes offered by the polytechnics, namely, the Higher National Diploma (HND) and the preliminary National Diploma (Pre-ND) the following procedure may apply:

An application form is usually obtained from the individual institution for a fee chargeable by that institution. For the Federal Polytechnics, the forms could also be obtained from the NBTE Secretariat Kaduna and the Federal Ministry of Education and Youth Development, Lagos. Completed forms are returned to the institutions.

Admission of a candidate into a programme is the prerogative of the Academic Board of the institution which must ensure that the candidate meets the minimum entry requirements for the programme as laid down by the National Board for Technical Education (NBTE) below:

## GENERAL ENTRY REQUIREMENTS FOR HND PROGRAMMES

Applicants with all the following qualifications may be considered for direct entry into the Higher National Diploma Programmes:

- 1. The minimum entry requirements for the ND programme in the specific field; or their equivalents;
- 2. The National Diploma with a minimum of lower credit pass in the discipline obtained from an NBTE accredited programme or its equivalent;
- A minimum of one year post National Diploma cognate work experience in the field of specialisation.
- 4. A pass ND certificate with a minimum of two years post ND work experience.
- For the HND Bilingual Secretarial Programme, a pass in French Language at the SSCE/GCE or equivalent qualifications will be an advantage. All candidates will be expected to pass an intensive 16 weeks French Language course prior to the commencement of the programme.

#### ENTRY REQUIREMENTS INTO PRE-NATIONAL DIPLOMA PROGRAMMES

For the preliminary National Diploma programme, the entry requirement is four GCE 'O' Level or SSSC ordinary passes at two sittings in subjects relevant to the programme. Specific admission requiments for the pre-ND programmes are as follows:

#### Pre-ND Science and Technology:

- GCE 'O' Level or SSSC ordinary passes or their equivalent in English Language, Mathematics and two subjects from Physics, Chemistry, Biology, or all the three science subjects depending on the programme in which the applicant will finally enrol.
- City and Guilds/ WAEC Intermediate Certificate and the Federal Craft Certificate with credit
  passes in English Language, Mathematic and Intergrated Physical Sciences (Physics/ Chemistry).

#### Pre-ND Business/Financial Studies:

 GCE 'O' Level or SSSC ordinary passes or their equivalent in English Languages, Mathematics, and any two of the following. Economics, Commerce, Geography, Business Methods, Principles chnics in the reandidates we candidate matriculation may be laid m. The final admissions

the Higher procedure

eable by that Secretariated forms are

oard of the ents for the

the Higher

equivalents; ned from an

the field of

CE/GCE or an intensive

O' Level or ssion requi-

Sathematics epending on

with credit Chemistry).

athematics, Principles

## of Accounts, Government. At least a pass in economics is essential.

In the case of the pre-ND in Secretarial Studies, the minimum requirement is GCE 'O' Level or SSSC ordinary passes in English Language, and three subjects from the following: Business Methods, Commerce, Typewriting, Shorthand, Literature in English, History, Religious Knowledge, Geography, Mathematics, Economics or their equivalent.

## GENERAL ENTRY REQUIREMENTS FOR NATIONAL DIPLOMA PROGRAMMES

The minimum entry requirements for the ND programmes are as follows:

- SSSC/GCE ordinary level or its equivalent with credit in four subjects relevant to the programme at not more than two sittings;
- Four credit passes in relevant subjects obtained at the final examination of an NBTE recognised
  preliminary ND programme offered in a Polytechnic or similar post-secondary technical
  institution.
- The National Technical Certificates (NTC) with credit passes in a trade and four academic subjects relevant to the programme and at least a pass in English Language.

## **Applicants for Technology Programme**

Candidates should have a pass at credit level in Mathematics and at least a pass in English Language. Exceptions are:-

- (a) Mass Communication and Art and Design in which a pass at credit level is required in English Language (not Literature in English). A pass grade in Mathematics and Physics is desirable but not a compulsory requirement;
- (b) Catering and Hotel Management in which a pass grade in Mathematics is desireable although not a compulsory requirement.

## **Applicants for Business Studies Programmes**

Candidates should have credit passes in English language and Mathematics.

For Secretarial Studies, a credit pass in English Language (not Literature in English) is required. Although a credit pass or pass grade in Mathematics is desirable, it is not a compulsory requirement.

#### SPECIFIC ADMISSION REQUIREMENTS FOR EACH PROGRAMME

A comprehensive list of the programmes and their specific requirements are shown under each heading below together with the four SSSC/GCE 'O' Level subjects relevant to the programme in which credit passes are required are:

#### AGRICULTURAL AND RELATED TECHNOLOGY PROGRAMMES

Programme	4 SSSC/GCE 'O' Level Subjects Relevant to the Programme
Agricultural Technology	Biology/Agricultural Science, Chemistry and any two of the folowing:
Animal Production Technology Forestry Technology	1. Geography
	2. Mathematics
Wildlife Management Technology.	3. Economics
	4. Statistics
	5. English Language
	6. Physics
	7. Agricultural Science
*	At least passes in English Languageand Mathematics are required of all candidates:

Programme	4 SSSC/GCE 'O' Level Subjects Relevant to the Programme
Wood and Paper Technology	Chemistry, Biology/Agricultural Science and any two of the following:
	1. Physics
	2. Mathematics
	3. Geography
	4. Economics
	5. English Language
	At least passes in Physics, English Language and Mathematics are compulsory.
Agricultural Engineering Technology	Mathematics, Physics, Biology/Agricultural Science, or Chemistry and one other subject.
	At least passes in Chemistry, Biology and English Language are compulsory.

# ART, PRINTING AND RELATED PROGRAMMES

Programme	4 SSSC/GCE 'O' Level Subjects Relevant to the Programme
Art and Design	English Language, Art, and any two of the following:
rit uliu Design	1. History
	2. Chemistry/Physical Science
	3. Biology
	4. Literature in English
	5. Mathematics
	6. Clothing and Textiles
	7. Religious Knowledge
Mass Communication	English Language and three other subjects from:
	1. History
	2. Literature in English
	3. Economics
	4. Art
	5. Government
	6. A Physical Science
	7. Geography
	Passes in Mathematics, Physics, Electronics/Basic Electricity will be an advantage.

	ı			
	ogran	nm	e	
	no of	the		
	ľ			
l				
-			_	
ICE	or,			
1				
re	gra	mn	e	
ıπξ	g:			

Programme	4 SSSC/GCE 'O' Level Subjects Relevant to the Program
Printing Technology	English Language and Chemistry and two other subjects from Mathematics, Physics, Accounting, Economics, met Work, Basic Electricity and Technical Drawings/Art.
	At least passes in Mathematics and Physics are compulso
Textile Technology	Mathematics
	Physics
	Chemistry and one other subject. At least a pass in English Language is compulsory.
	In addition to the above, passes in Art, Clothing and Textile, Technical Drawing, Metal Work, Basic Electricity/Electronics will be an advantage.

# **BUSINESS STUDIES PROGRAMMES**

Programme	4 SSSC/GCE 'O' Level Subjects Relevant to the Programm			
Accountancy Business Administration and Manage-ment Co-operatives Studies Finance and Banking Marketing Purchase and Supply Insurance Public Administration	English Language (not Literature in English) and Mathematics and any two subjects from the following:  1. Economics 2. Business Studies 3. Principles of Accounts 4. Commerce 5. Statistics 6. Geography 7. Government 8. Agricultural Science/Biology			
Secretarial Studies	English Language (not Literature in English) and any thre subjects from the following:  1. Business Methods 2. Commerce 3. Economics 4. Typewriting 5. Shorthand 6. Principles of accounts 7. Mathematics 8. History 9. Literature in English			

Programme	4 SSSC/GCE 'O' Level Subjects Relevant to the Programm
Secretarial Studies (Contd.)	10. Government
	11. Geography
	12. Religious Knowledge
	13. Biology/Agricultural Science
	A pass in Mathematics and a Science subject is desirable although not compulsory requirements.
	Candidates will in addition to the qualifications listed above be expected to pass an interview for the final selection.

# ENGINEERING TECHNOLOGY PROGRAMMES

Programme	4 SSSC/GCE 'O' Level Subjects Relevant to the Programm			
Civil Engineering Technology	Mathematics and Physics.			
Electrical/Electronic Engineering Technology	One Science subject from: Chemistry			
Marine Engineering Technology	Biology/Agricultural Science and one other subject. At least a pass in English Language is required.			
Mechanical Engineering Technology	In addition, credit or ordinary pass grade in any one of the following subjects will be an advantage:			
	- Technical Drawing			
	<ul> <li>Basic Electronics/Basic Electricity</li> </ul>			
	- Auto Mechanics			
	- Metal Work			
	<ul> <li>Wood Work (for Civil Engineering Technology)</li> </ul>			
	- Fine Art.			

Вι

Programme	4 SSSC/GCE 'O' Level Subjects Relevant to the Programme
Chemical Engineering Technology	Mathematics
Metallurgy	Chemistry
Mining Engineering	Physics
Irrigation Engineering Technology	and one subject from any of the following:
	<ul> <li>Technical Drawing</li> </ul>
	Biology (or Agricultural Science)
	<ul> <li>Additional Mathematics</li> </ul>
	- Statistics
	Basic Electronics
	- Metal Work
	- Wood Work
	- Fine Art.
	English Language
	<ul> <li>Geography</li> </ul>
	- Economics
	Atleast a pass in English Language is compulsory.

# ENVIRONMENTAL DESIGN PROGRAMMES

Programme	4 SSSC/GCE 'O' Level Su	bjects Relevant to the Programmo		
Architectural Technology	Mathematics and Physics/O from the following:	Mathematics and Physics/Chemistry and any two subjects from the following:		
	1. Biology	5. Geography		
	2. Physics	6. Economics		
	3. Chemistry	7. Religious Knowledge		
	4. English Language	8. Technical Drawing/Art.		
1.00	At least a pass in Art or Te advantage.	echnical Drawing will be an		
Building Technology	Mathematics and Physics of following:	or Chemistry and two of the		
	1. Economics	5. Wood Work		
	2. Technical Drawing/Art	6. Biology		
	3. Chemistry	7. English Language		
	4. Geography			
	At least a pass in English Langu			
A pass in Art or Technical Drawing				

Programme	4 SSSC/GCE 'O' Level S	ubjects Relevant to the Program		
Estate Management	Mathematics, three Social and basic science subjects and any one of the following:			
	1. Geography	7. Art		
	2. Economics	8. Wood Work		
	3. Physics	9. Literature		
	4. Biology	10. Metalwork		
	5. Chemistry	11. Principles of Accounts		
	6. Technical Drawing. At least a pass in English I	Language is compulsory.		
Topographic Sciences  (a) Land Surveying  Mathematics and Physics and any other two the following:				
(b) Cartography	1. Additional Mathematics	S		
(c) Photogrammetry	2. Chemistry			
(c) I hotogrammetry	3. Technical Drawing/Art			
	4. Geography			
The state of the s	5. Economics			
	6. Biology At least a pass in English is compulstory.			
Town and Regional Planning	Mathematics, and three other subjects from:			
Justina Tarak I I Just Til	1. English			
	2. Economics			
	3. Geography			
	4. Art/Technical Drawing			
	5. Statistics			
	6. Chemistry			
	7. Physics	7. Physics		
	8. Biology/Agricultural Sci	ence		
	One of the three subjects must be a Science Subject. At least a pass in English is compulstory.			
Quantity Surveying	Mathematics and three oth	ner subjects from:		
and Building Technology.	1. Physics	6. Wood Work		
	2. Chemistry	7. Economics		
	3. General Science	8. Building construction		
	4. Technical Drawing/Art	9. Biology or Agric. Science		
	5. Geography			
	One of the three subjects must be a basic science subject.  At least a pass in English Language is compulsory			

Catering a

Nutrition

Tourism

Fashion Clothing

## HOSPITALITY AND RELATED PROGRAMMES

Programme	4 SSSC/GCE 'O' Level Subjects Relevant to the Programm
Catering and Hotel Management	Biology/Agricultural Science and any three of the following:
A CONTRACT OF THE PARTY OF THE	1. Physics
	2. Chemistry
	3. Mathematics/Statistics
	4. Economics
	5. Foods and Nutrition/Home Management
	6. Health Science
	7. Geography
	At least passes in English Language and Mathematics are compulsory.
Nutrition and Dietetics	Chemistry, Biology/Agricultural Science and any two of the following:
	1. Foods and Nutrition
	2. Mathematics
	3. Economics
	4. Physics
	5. Health Science
	At least passes in English Language, and Mathematics
Tourism	English Language,
	Geography,
	a Science subject and one other subject from
	Economics, History, Statistics, Mathematics,
	Art, French Language, Government, Foods and Nutrition.
Fashion Design and	Art/Technical Drawing and any three of the following:
ClothingTechnology	1. History
	2. Physics
	3. Chemistry
	4. Biology
	5. Mathematics
	6. Clothing and Textiles
	7. Literature in English
	At least a pass in English Language is compulsory.

# SCIENCE, COMPUTING AND RELATED PROGRAMMES

Programme	4 SSSC/GCE 'O' Level Subjects Relevant to the Programme
Food Technology	Chemistry and Biology/Agricultural Science and any two of the following:
	1. Physics
	2. Mathematics
	3. Economics
	4. English Language
	5. Additional Maths
	6. Statistics
	At least ordinary passes in physics, english language and mathematics are compulsory.
Science Laboratory Technology	Mathematics, two subjects from:
	1. Physics
	2. Biology/Agricultural Science,
	3. Chemistry; and one other subject from
	Technical Drawing, Metal and Wood Works, Geography, Further Mathematics, Art, Physics, Biology, Agricultural Science and Chemistry.
	At least a pass in each of the three basic sciences - biology, chemistry, physics and english language is compulsory.
Computer Studies Statistics	Mathematics, a Social Science and two other subjects chosen from the following:
Statistics	1. Economics
	2. Statistics
	3. Geography
	4. Govt./History
	5. Further Maths
	6. Physics
	7. Chemistry
	At least one of the two subjects should be a basic science subject.
	At least a pass in English Language is compulsory.

Programme	4 SSSC/GCE 'O' Level Subjects Relevant to the Programm
Rubber and Polymer Technology	Physics
	Chemistry
	Mathematics
	and one other subject from the following:
	1. Economics
	2. Technical Drawing/Art
	3. Further Mathematics; and
	4. Biology
	At least a pass in English Language and Biology are compulsory.

# INDEX OF POLYTECHNICS AND SIMILAR POST SECONDARY TECHNICAL INSTITUTIONS.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

Name of Institution	Year Established	Ownership
1. Benue Polytechnic,	1977	State
P.M.B. 2215, Ugbokolo,		
Benue State		
<ol><li>College of Technology,</li></ol>	1991	State
Esa-Oke, Osun State.		
3. Institute of Management and Technology	1965	State
P.M.B. 1079, Enugu.		
Anambra State.		
4. Kaduna Polytechnic,	1960	State
P.M.B. 2021,		
Kaduna, Kaduna State.	4	
5. Kaduną State Polytechnic,	1989	
P. M. B. 1061, Zaria,		
Kaduna State.		
6. Kano State Polytechnic,	1978	State
P.M.B. 3401, Kano		
Kano State.		
7. Katsina State Polytechnic,	1973	State
P.M.B. 2025,		
Katsina, Katsina State.		
3. Kwara State Polytechnic,	1977	State
P.M.B. 1373,		
Ilorin Kwara State.		
Lagos State Polytechnic,	1977	State
Isolo Road,		
P.M.B. 21606,		
Ikeja - Lagos.		
0. Ogun State Polytechnic,	1978	State
P.M.B. 2210,		
Abeokuta.		
Ogun State.		
	L <sub>4</sub>	

-	Name of Institution	Year Established	Ownership
11.	Ondo State Polytechnic, P. M. B. 1019, Owo,	1980	State
	Ondo State.		
12.	Our Saviour Institute of Science,	1990	Private
	Agriculture and Technology, Enugu, Enugu State.		
13.	Plateau State Polytechnic,	1978	State
	Barkin Ladi		
	P.M.B. 23, Buruku-Jos.		
14.	Ramat Polytechnic,	1976	State
	P.M.B. 1017,	(6)	
	Maiduguri, Borno State.		
15.	Rivers State Polytechnic,	1978	State
	P. M. B. 20, Bori,		
	Rivers State.		
l6.	The Akanu Ibiam Federal Polytechnic,	-	
	Unwana. P. M. B. 1007, Afikpo,	1981	Federal
	Abia State.	-	
17.	The Federal Polytechnic,	1977	Federal
	P. M. B. 5351, Ado-Ekiti		
	Ondo State.		7
18.	The Federal Polytechnic,	1964	State
	P.M.B. 13, Auchi		
	Edo State		
19.	The Federal Polytechnic,	1979	Federal
	P.M.B. 0231, Bauchi, BauchiState		
20.	The Federal Polytechnic,	1977	Federal
	P.M.B. 55, Bida.		
	Niger State		27 -
1.	The Federal Polytechnic,	1992	Federal
	Ede, Osun State.		
2.	The Federal Polytechnic,	1977	Federal
	P.M.B. 1037,		
	Idah - Benue State.	200	a e

	Name of Institution	Year Established	Ownership
23.	The Federal Polytechnic, P.M.B. 50 Ilaro, Ogun State.	1979	Federal
	1.M.B. 50 Haro, Ogun State.		
24.	The Federal Polytechnic,	1983	Federal
	P.M.B. 1012, Kaura-Namoda,		
	Sokoto State.		
25.	The Federal Polytechnic,	1979	Federal
7	P.M.B. 35, Mubi, Adamawa State.		
26.	The Federal Polytechnic,	1983	Federal
	P.M.B. 0001,		
	Nassarawa, Plateau State.		
27.	The Federal Polytechnic,	1978	State
	P.M.B. 1036, Nekede,		
	Owerri. Imo State.		
28.	The Federal Polytechnic,	1992	Federal
20.	Offa, Kwara State	1972	rederar
29.	The Federal Polytechnic, Oko,	1991	State
	Aguata L.G.A.,		
	Anambra State		
30.	The Polytechnic,	1973	State
50.	P.M.B. 1110,	12/3	State
	Calabar. Cross River State.		
31.	The Polytechnic	1970	State
	P.M.B. 5063, Ibadan.		
	Oyo State.		
32.	The Polytechnic,	1991	State
	P. M. B. 301, Iree,		
	Osun State.		
22	The Debashair	1976	State
33.	The Polytechnic P.M.B. 1034,	1970	State,
	Birni Kebbi, Kebbi State.	2	
	Dirili Keudi, Keudi State.		
34.	Yaba College of Technology	1948	Federal
	P.M.B. 2001,		
	Yaba - Lagos.		
		A	

# INDEX OF MONOTECHNICS IN NIGERIA

Name of Institution	Year Established	Ownership
COLLEGES OF AGRICULTURE		
<ol> <li>Akperan Orshi College of Agriculture, Yandev, Benue State</li> </ol>	1957	Federal
2. Borno State College of Agriculture, P. M. B. 1427, Maiduguri, Borno State.	1977	State
3. College of Agriculture, Akure. Ondo State.	1957	Federal
4. College of Agriculture, Bauchi, Bauchi State.	1971	State
College of Agriculture, Jalingo, Taraba State	1979	State
6. College of Agriculture, Kabba, Kogi State.	1964	State
7. College of Agriculture, Samaru, Zaria, Kaduna State.	1931	Federal
B. Federal College of Agriculture, P. M. B. 5029, Ibadan, Oyo State.	1921	Federal
P. M. B. 7008, Umudike, Umuahia - Abia State.	1955	Federal
O. Federal College of Animal Health & Production P. M. B. 5021, Ibadan.	1964	State
1. Federal College of Animal Health and Production, Vom, Plateau State.	1934	Federal
12. Federal College of Chemical & Leather Technology, Zaria, Kaduna State.		Federal
3. Federal College of Fisheries Victoria Island, P. M. B. 12729, Lagos, Lagos State.	1969	Federal
4. Federal College of Fresh Water Fisheries, P. M. B. 1500, New Bussa.	1975	Federal

1	Name of Institution	Year Established	Ownership
	Name of Institution	Tear Established	Ownersnip
14.	Federal College of Forestry, P. M. B. 5029, Ibadan. Oyo State.	1939	Federal
15	Federal College of Forestry, P. M. B. 2019, Jos. Plateau State	1958	Federal
	Flateau State	*	
16.	Michael Okpara College of Agriculture, P. M. B. 1472, Umuagwo, Imo State.	1978	State
17.	Niger State College of Agriculture P. M. B. 109, Mokwa. Niger State.	1983	State
1 <mark>8</mark> .	Sokoto State College of Agriculture, P. M. B. 1018, Zuru, Kebbi State.	1976	State
. (	OTHER MONOTECHNICS		
19.	Federal Survey School, Oyo, Oyo State.	1990	Federal
20.	National Water Resources Institute, P. M. B. 2309, Mando Road, Kaduna State.	1985	Federal
21.	Nigerian Army School of Finance and Administration, Apapa, Lagos. Lagos State.	1968	Federal
22.	Petroleum Training Institute, Effurun, Delta State.	1972	Federal